AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE

DEPTFORD TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

AND THE

DEPTFORD EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

JULY 1, 2022 TO JUNE 30, 2027

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION	3
ARTICLE II – NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES	
ARTICLE III - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	5
ARTICLE IV - RIGHTS	7
ARTICLE V – ASSOCIATION PRIVILEGES	8
ARTICLE VI - WORK YEAR AND WORK DAY	.11
ARTICLE VII – EMPLOYMENT AND SALARY	.19
ARTICLE VIII – EMPLOYEE TRANSFER. ASSIGNMENT AND REASSIGNMENT	.29
ARTICLE IX – EMPLOYEE EVALUATION	.32
ARTICLE X – EMPLOYEE LIAISON	.34
ARTICLE XI - SICK LEAVE	.35
ARTICLE XII – PERSONAL LEAVE	.37
ARTICLE XIII – MATERNITY LEAVE	.38
ARTICLE XIV – VACATIONS - 12 MONTH EMPLOYEES	.39
ARTICLE XV - TEACHER PRE-RIF CONFERENCE	.41
ARTICLE XVI - INSURANCE PROTECTION	.42
ARTICLE XVII - EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS	.45
ARTICLE XVIII - DEDUCTIONS FROM SALARY	.46
ARTICLE XIX - UNIFORMS	.47
ARTICLE XX – GAS MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT	.48
ARTICLE XXI – MILITARY/JURY DUTY	.49
ARTICLE XXII - PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES	.50
ARTICLE XXIII - HEALTH & SAFETY / FACILITIES & EQUIPMENT	.51
ARTICLE XXIV – AGENCY FEE	.52
ARTICLE XXV - MISCELLANEOUS	.53
ARTICLE XXVI - AGREEMENT	.54
EXHIBIT A - FIELD TRIPS	.55
EXHIBIT B - EXTRA WORK	.56
EXHIBIT 1 - CERTIFICATED STAFF SALARY GUIDE	
EXHIBIT 2 - HIGH SCHOOL ATHLETIC SALARIES	.72
EXHIBIT 2 - HIGH SCHOOL CO- CURRICULAR SALARIES	. 62
EXHIBIT 2 - MIDDLE SCHOOL CO-CURRICULAR SALARIES	. 64
EXHIBIT 2 - MIDDLE SCHOOL ATHLETIC SALARIES	
EXHIBIT 3 - SECRETARIAL SALARIES	66
EXHIBIT 3 - PARAPROFESSIONAL SALARY RATE	66
EXHIBIT 3 – SERVICE AIDES SALARY RATE	67
EXHIBIT 4 - BUS DRIVERS HOURLY RATE	68
EXHIBIT 4 - BUS AIDES HOURLY RATE	68
EXHIBIT 4 – SPECIAL EDUCATION RUNS SALARY RATES	69
EXHIBIT 5 - CUSTODIAL, MAINTENANCE, GROUNDS AND VEHICLE MECHANICS SALARY RATE	70
EXHIBIT 5 - CAFETERIA WORKERS SALARY	70

ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION

- The Deptford Township Board of Education, Deptford Township, Gloucester County, hereafter known as Α. the Board, hereby recognizes the Deptford Education Association, hereafter known as the Association, as the exclusive representative for collective negotiation concerning the terms and conditions of employment for the following employees: all fully certified personnel under contract and employed by the Board and so assigned as an employee who teaches students directly such as classroom teacher, special area teacher, plus instructional coaches, librarian, guidance counselors, nurse, social worker, school psychologist, athletic trainer, learning disability teacher consultant, and all non-certified personnel such as Parent Education Resource Center Coordinator, paraprofessionals, service aides (lunch/recess), bus aides, bus drivers, vehicle mechanics, school security officer(s), cafeteria workers, maintenance employees, grounds employees, custodians, painters, HVAC technician, electrician, and all employees under contract and employed by the Board and so assigned as employees who perform secretarial and clerical duties, excluding confidential secretaries, Accountant, Senior Payroll, Junior Payroll, Accounts Payable, Business Office Administrative Assistant, Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent, Business Administrator, Assistant Business Administrator, cafeteria managers, custodial/maintenance supervisors, transportation supervisor and general supervisor and those employees not currently a member of any bargaining unit.
- B. The Association hereby recognizes the Board as the legal authority elected as representatives of the people and further recognizes the responsibilities of the Board and the Superintendent for the conduct and operation of the school district in compliance with New Jersey Statutes Title 18 A. Articles of the contract shall apply to all work groups listed in that Article, unless noted otherwise therein.

Work Groups Delineated:

Teacher: Classroom teacher, special area teacher, instructional coach, librarian, guidance counselors, nurse, social worker, psychologist, athletic trainer, learning disability teacher consultant

Drivers: Bus drivers

Cafeteria: Cafeteria workers

Maintenance/Custodial: Grounds, Custodians, Maintenance, Painters, HVAC technician, Electrician

Transportation: Vehicle Mechanics

School Security Officer

Aides: Paraprofessionals, Bus aides, Service aides (lunch/recess), Parent Education Resource Center

Coordinator

Secretary/Clerical: Secretaries, Clerk

<u>ARTICLE II - NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES</u>

- A. The parties agree to enter into collective negotiation over a successor Agreement, (and they agree that this Agreement shall remain in force until such times as a new Agreement is reached in accordance with Chapter 123 Public Laws of 1974). Such negotiations shall begin no later than February 1st of the last year of the current agreement.
- B. Consistent with Chapter 123 of Public Laws of 1974, the Board shall not affect any change in policy concerning terms and conditions of employment except those so negotiated and included as part of this Agreement and contained herein.
- C. The Board agrees to furnish the Association upon reasonable request, such information as will assist the Association in developing intelligent, feasible and constructive proposals on behalf of teachers, students, and the school system. This information may include a complete and accurate financial report and tentative budget for the next school year, complete salary scattergram showing all employees, and complete health benefits scattergram showing all employees.
- D. The Association agrees to furnish the Board and Superintendent upon reasonable request, research information and data, gathered by the Association that will assist the Board and the Superintendent in the development of sound educational programs.
- E. During the term of this Agreement, neither party shall be required to negotiate with respect to any matter whether or not covered by this Agreement and whether or not within the knowledge contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or executed this Agreement.
- F. This Agreement shall not be modified in whole or in part by the parties except by an instrument in writing duly executed by both parties. Board policy shall prevail on all matters not covered by this Agreement.

ARTICLE III - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. Definitions

- 1. Grievance is defined as a claim by an employee, employees, or the Association based upon an alleged violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of this Agreement, policies, or administrative decisions affecting an employee or a group of employees.
- 2. Grievant is defined as the employee or employees or the Association making the claim on behalf of the employee or group of employees or the Association on behalf of itself.
- 3. Days mean school attendance days.

B. Time Limits

A grievance shall be processed within the specified time limits. Time limits may be extended by mutual agreement. Any grievance not advanced from one step to the next within the time limits of that step shall be considered withdrawn.

C. Record Keeping

Documents, communications and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed in a separate grievance file and shall not be kept in the personnel file of any of the participants.

D. Representation

The grievant may be represented at all stages of the grievance procedure by himself or at his option by a representative. When the aggrieved is not represented by the Association, the Association shall have the right to be present as observer. All meetings and hearings under this procedure shall not be conducted in public and shall include only such parties in interest and their representatives and counsel.

E. Procedure

1. Level 1 - Step A - Informal.

No grievance shall be accepted unless it is raised within ten (10) school days of the time when it first occurred. Within said ten (10) school day period, the aggrieved shall first discuss the grievance with his/her immediate supervisor and/or principal directly with the objective of resolving the matter informally.

Level 1 - Step B - Formal

If the aggrieved person is not satisfied with the disposition of his/her grievance after informal discussion or if no decision has been rendered within five (5) school days after presentation of the grievance, he/she may file the grievance with his/her principal/immediate supervisor within ten (10) school days of receipt of the principal's/immediate supervisor's answer or failure of his/her principal/immediate supervisor to make a determination based upon the informal presentation of the employee. The grievance shall be stated in writing and signed by the aggrieved.

The "Statement of Grievance" shall name the individual employee or employees involved, shall state the facts giving rise to the grievance, shall identify the alleged infraction of this Agreement, shall state the contention of the employee with respect to the alleged infraction and shall indicate the specific relief sought.

2. Level II

If the aggrieved person is not satisfied with the disposition of his/her grievance at Level 1 or if no decision has been rendered with five (5) school days after presentation of the grievance, he/she may within ten (10) school days of the principal's/immediate supervisor's answer file the grievance in writing with the Superintendent of Schools. At the same time, a copy of the grievance shall be given to the principal/immediate supervisor's involved. The Superintendent or his/her designee

shall give the aggrieved an answer in writing no later than ten (10) school days after receipt of written grievance. The decision may be announced to the parties concerned.

3. Level III

If the aggrieved person is not satisfied with the disposition of his/her grievance at Level II, or if no decision has been rendered within ten (10) school days after presentation of the grievance to the Superintendent, the aggrieved person may within ten (10) school days after the Superintendent's answer or failure of the Superintendent to render a decision on the formal grievance, file the grievance in writing with the Board of Education.

The aggrieved person shall be granted a hearing with the Board of Education within ten (10) school days of the receipt of the written grievance, or at the next Board of Education meeting if one is not scheduled within the ten (10) day period. The Board shall give the aggrieved person an answer in writing within five (5) school days of the date of the hearing.

4. <u>Level IV</u>

In the event that the grievance shall not have been disposed of at Level III, the aggrieved may within thirty (30) school days after the Board's decision refer the unsettled grievance to arbitration. The Arbitrator's decision shall be binding for all work groups.

F. Arbitration

The Arbitrator shall be selected within thirty (30) days following the request of either party to the other, under the rules and procedures of the New Jersey Public Employment Relations Commission.

The Arbitrator shall have the authority to confer separately or jointly with the Board, Superintendent, and the Association or to use any other source of information.

The Arbitrator shall make determinations for resolution within thirty (30) days. The determinations shall be submitted to both parties, the Board and the Association.

The Arbitrator's decision, after twenty (20) days may be made public by either party, the Board or the Association.

G. Costs

The cost and expense incurred in securing and utilizing the services of the Arbitrator shall be the shared responsibility of the parties engaging his services.

- H. No reprisals shall be taken against any participant by reason of participation. The following matters shall not be arbitrable.
 - a. The failure or refusal of the Board to renew a contract of a non-tenured employee.
 - b. Matters where a method of review is prescribed by law or by any rule, regulation of the State Commissioner of Education or the State Board of Education.
 - c. Matters where the Board is without authority to act.
 - d. Matters involving the statutory or discretionary powers of the Board.

ARTICLE IV - RIGHTS

A. All Employees

- 1. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict to any employee such rights as he/she may have under New Jersey School Laws/ the laws of New Jersey.
- No employee shall be disciplined without just cause.
- 3. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny the Board or Superintendent their rights at any time to call a meeting of the staff to present its position in any matter that in its judgment may affect the education program.
- 4. The Board reserves to itself sole jurisdiction and authority over matters of policy and retains the right, subject only to the limitations imposed by the language of this Agreement, in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations (a) to direct employees of the school district, (b) to hire, promote, transfer, assign, and retain employees in position in the school district and for just cause to suspend, to demote, discharge, or take other disciplinary action against employees, (c) to relieve employees from duty because of lack of work or for other legitimate reasons, (d) to maintain the efficiency of the school district operations entrusted to them, (e) to determine the methods, means and personnel by which such operations are conducted and (f) to take whatever actions may be necessary to carry out the mission of the school district in situations of emergency.
- 5. The personal life of an employee is not an appropriate concern or attention of the Board except as it may directly prevent the employee from performing properly his/her assigned functions during the work day.
- Non-renewal of non-tenured employees shall not be subject to the grievance procedure and the Board retains all rights in regard thereto. Such an employee may request reasons in writing for the nonrenewal within fifteen (15) calendar days after receiving notice thereof. The reasons shall be supplied within thirty (30) calendar days after request. Within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the reasons, the employee may request an informal hearing before the Board concerning said reasons. Said hearing will be held within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the request. The Board may notify the affected member, in writing, of its final determination within three 3 calendar days; but if there is no change in the board's disposition, then no notice is required.

B. Bus Drivers, Bus Mechanics

- A. The Superintendent shall have the authority to impose suspensions without pay for a period not exceeding ten (10) work days. The Board of Education shall have the authority to impose suspensions without pay beyond the ten (10) work day period and, in appropriate cases, to terminate employees.
- B. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to confer contract tenure upon any employee. To the contrary, the Board reserves the right to the fullest extent of the law to non-renew an employee at the end of each school year based on sound determination. More specifically, and not by way of limitation, such non-renewals are not subject to binding arbitration either by contract or by statutory provisions.

ARTICLE V - ASSOCIATION PRIVILEGES

- A. The Association or its named representatives shall be privileged to transact official Association business on school district property at reasonable times, provided that this shall not interfere with or interrupt any individual assignment or the normal operation of the school.
- B. The Association or its named representative shall be privileged to process school-building use applications for unit activities with the approval of the Superintendent or his designee.
- C. The Association shall be privileged the exclusive use of a bulletin board for employees in each school building in addition to space on the bulletin board of the central office where one is in existence. The location of the Association bulletin board may be designated by the Association president so long as it does not interfere with the orderliness of the area.
- D. The Association shall be given one (1) hour during staff orientation opening day in-service to conduct official Association business. The Association shall be notified of the times prior to the opening of school.
- E. In the event that the Association wishes to use school buildings, requests therefore shall be submitted to the Superintendent forty-eight (48) hours in advance. The request shall not be granted for meetings which are for the purpose of discussing or planning action which would be adverse to the interests of the Board.
- The Association may request the use of school equipment including computers, typewriters, calculating machines, copy machines, other duplicating equipment, and all types of audio-visual equipment at reasonable times, when such equipment is not otherwise in use. The Association shall pay for the reasonable cost of all materials and supplies incidental to such use as well as the cost of any repairs made necessary from such use. Such use may not be for the purpose of preparing materials adverse to the interests of the Board.
- G. The Association shall have the right to use the inter-school mail facilities, e-mail, and school mailboxes in regard to members within the DEA collective bargaining group. All e-mail(s) sent by DEA must be related to the professional business of the DEA/GCEA/NJEA/NEA and/or its membership.
- H. Representatives of the Association and/or N.J.E.A. must, on coming upon the Board's premises, notify the Superintendent and advise of the purpose of the visit. No visitation shall interfere with or interrupt normal school operations.
- I. The DEA President, other than an elementary teacher, shall have 2 release periods per day to conduct Association business, or, at the option of the Association, the DEA President shall be granted full-time release from his/her duties with the Board. If the Association chooses full-time release, the President's salary and health benefits costs shall be reimbursed to the Board by the Association and/or its affiliates: DEA/GCEA/NJEA/NEA. This employee will maintain and continue their tenure, seniority, and years of service toward their pension. If the Association President chooses the full-time release option, they must notify the Board in writing of this decision by March 1 to take effect for the next year from July 1 through June 30.
- J. An elected president of the county association, Gloucester County Education Association (GCEA), shall be granted full release from his/her duties with the Board. The individual's salary and health benefits costs shall be reimbursed to the Board by the Association and/or its affiliates: DEA/GCEA/NJEA/NEA. This employee will maintain and continue their tenure, seniority, and years of service toward their pension.
- K. The Board and/or its agent, the administration, shall make every effort to inform the Association President about all non-renewals prior to informing the employees.
- L. The parties recognize the important role of open, honest, ongoing labor/management collaboration and the positive impact that this has on staff satisfaction and retention, morale, student achievement, and community relations. The Board agrees the longevity of the Association and its leadership lends a unique and important perspective of the district's operations. The Board maintains its most important task is choosing a Superintendent of Schools. Accordingly, the Board should invite the Association President to participate in all interviews and meetings related to all aspects of a superintendent search and interviews.

The Association President will not have a formal vote on the future superintendent, but will be empowered to ask questions, hold discussion, and take part in every other aspect of the superintendent search process.

M. ACCESS

The Board shall provide to the Association access to all members and potential members of the negotiations units. Access to members of the Association and potential members (negotiations unit members) shall include, but not be limited to the following:

- 1. The Association shall have the right to meet with individual employees on the premises during the work day to investigate and discuss grievances, workplace-related complaints, and other workplace issues.
- 2. The Association shall have the right to conduct worksite meetings during lunch and other non-work breaks, and before and after the workday, on workplace premises and to use buildings and facilities to discuss workplace issues, collective negotiations, the administration of collective negotiations agreements, other matters related to the duties of the Association, and internal union matters involving the governance or business of the Association.
- 3. The Association shall have the right to meet with newly hired employees, without charge to the pay or leave time of the employees within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of hire, during new employee orientations, or if the employer does not conduct new employee orientations, at individual or group meetings. Meeting duration time is up to 120 minutes, in no cases less than 30 minutes, with final duration of time needed to be determined by the Association.
- 4. Within ten (10) calendar days from the date of hire of any employee, the Board shall provide the following contact information to the Association in an Excel file format. It shall include: name, job title, worksite location, home address, work telephone numbers/extension, and any home and personal cellular telephone numbers on file with the Board, date of hire, and work email address and any personal email address on file with the Board.
- 5. Every one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days, upon request, the Board shall provide the Association, in an Excel file, the following information for all employees: name, job title, worksite location, home address, work, home and personal cellular telephone numbers, date of hire, and work email address and personal email address on file with the Board.
- 6. The home addresses, phone numbers, email addresses, date of birth, and negotiation units and groupings of employees, and the emails or other communications between employee organizations and their members, prospective members, and non-members, are not government records and are exempt from any disclosure requirements of P.L.1963, c.73 (C.47:1A-1 et seq.) The Board shall not disclose employee information, except as outlined in sections 4 and 5 above.
- 7. The Association shall have the right to use the email systems of the Board to communicate regarding collective negotiations, the administration of collective negotiations agreements, the investigation of grievances, other workplace-related complaints and issues, and internal union matters involving the governance or business of the union. Such communications shall be considered confidential.

Union Protection

- 1. The Board and/or its agents, members of the administration, shall not encourage negotiation unit members to resign or relinquish membership in the Association and shall not encourage negotiations unit members to revoke authorization of the deduction of fees to the Association or its unified affiliates.
- 2. The Board and/or its agents, members of the administration, shall not encourage or discourage an employee from joining or assisting the Association.

Membership Withdraw

1. Should a negotiations unit member notify the Board or its agents that they wish to resign or relinquish membership in the Association, the Board shall require the member to submit a dues termination form and provide a copy of same to the Association's president or his/her designee within five (5) calendar days of receiving the form the unit member. Negotiations unit members may only resign or relinquish their membership or terminate dues deductions during the ten (10) calendar days following each

anniversary date of the employee's employment. A withdrawal shall take effect on the thirtieth (30th) calendar day after the anniversary date.

Definition

1. The Parties agree that the date of hire shall be defined as the first day of work in the then current district for any negotiations unit member. This shall include any new employee orientation day(s) required by the Board.

Enforcement

1. This article shall be enforceable through the parties' grievance procedure, which shall include binding arbitration.

Release Time

1. The Board shall release, without loss of pay, an Association Representative(s) and/or designee(s) designated by the Association President and permit him/her/them to visit any work station for the purposes of meeting with newly hired employees, to investigate working conditions, employee complaints or problems, or for any other purposes relating to terms and conditions of employment.

ARTICLE VI - WORK YEAR AND WORK DAY

A. The school calendar shall be as set forth by the Board.

B. Teachers

- 1. <u>School Day</u> The teacher's school day shall be defined as: seven (7) hours and fifteen (15) minutes maximum.
 - a. Employees shall sign in and sign out in the office of the building principal upon entering and leaving the premises within the prescribed school hours.
 - b. In the event that the State imposes an increase in the minimum number of hours necessary for a full school day, the Board shall have no duty to negotiate over the impact thereof unless the increase results in lengthening the teachers' work day beyond their contracted work day. In such an event, the Board shall have a duty to negotiate over that impact.
- 2. <u>School Week</u> The school week shall consist of five (5) full working days, Monday through Friday inclusive, except where legal holidays and vacation periods are included in the school calendar.
- 3. <u>Teacher Work Year</u> The teacher work year shall be as follows: 184 days; at least two days shall be used for professional development.
 - The teacher work year includes the two (2) New Jersey Education Association Convention days. The one hundred and eighty-four (184) day work year shall be as follows: One hundred and eighty (180) days will be teaching days. At least two days or the equivalent (6 hours per day) shall be used for professional development. Details for the use of equivalent time to be mutually agreed upon by the Deptford Township Board of Education and the Office of the Superintendent. The school year shall be ten (10) calendar months for professional employees who hold a ten (10) month contract.
- 4. The parties recognize that some of the duties of professional employees may extend beyond the defined school day. These duties during the school year are in excess of assignments for which extra compensation is paid.
 - These hours may be spent on the school premises, in charge of pupil activities, or other approved activities. They may also include attendance at PTA meetings, service on curriculum and other committees, and such items as chaperoning of social and athletic events and working with individual pupils.
- 5. Employees shall be entitled to a duty free lunch period as prescribed in the Agreement, forty (40) minutes high school, forty (40) minutes middle school, and forty-five (45) minutes elementary schools.
- 6. The District shall schedule two Parent Collaboration Days within the existing work year for grades Pre-K through twelve. These shall be early dismissal days for students with the remaining time each day set for parent collaboration.

Teaching Load

a. The administration shall, whenever possible, minimize additional responsibilities to the normal teaching assignments.

b. Preparation Time

1) All elementary teachers shall receive one hundred eighty (180) minutes preparation time per week. If special area(s) are eliminated, the amount of prep time shall be reduced proportionately, i.e. by thirty (30) minutes for each special eliminated. Special area teachers shall receive one hundred fifty (150) minutes of prep time per week.

- 2) Teachers in the departmentalized program, Grade Level 6-12, shall receive one forty (40) minute preparation period per day.
- 3) A hearing may be requested by any teacher with the principal and the Superintendent in reference to teaching load.
- 4) Any staff member in the high school and/or the middle school with more than three (3) different courses per day shall receive one (1) additional preparation period per day.
- 8. All building level extra-curricular positions (i.e., building mentor) are posted annually.
- 9. Teachers assigned to write Individualized Education Programs (IEPs) shall be provided with one (1) day of release time.
- 10. Teachers shall be given at least two (2) duty-free work hours to prepare student growth objectives (SGO) prior to October 31.

C. Part-Time Teachers

- 1. Part-time teachers will work three (3) hours and twenty (20) minutes per day.
- 2. Salary shall be prorated at 50% of the salary guide.
- 3. Part-time teachers will work the full Board calendar.
- 4. Part-time teachers will be eligible for sick, personal, and bereavement leave.
- 5. Preparation time shall be prorated at 50%.
- 6. Part-time teachers are not eligible for a lunch period.
- 7. On days with delayed openings or early dismissals, part-time teachers will work three (3) hours and twenty (20) minutes.
- 8. On half-day in-service days, part-time teachers will report for the in-service time.
- 9. On full-day in-service days, part-time teachers will report for one continuous three (3) hour and twenty (20) minute session in collaboration with their principal.

D. Clerical Employees

- 1. The workday shall be seven hours and fifteen minutes (7-1/4) per day exclusive of a one hour lunch. School building assignments shall be covered by secretarial and/or clerk services no less than one-half (1/2) hour before the official opening of school and one (1) hour beyond the close of the school day. District offices (Office of the Superintendent, Business Office, Curriculum Office, Special Services) shall be covered by secretarial and/or clerical services from 8:15 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. daily with a staggered lunch period of one (1) hour. Schools on double session or extended day shall be covered 1/2 hour before sessions and one hour after the close of said school session but in no case shall the secretarial day be shorter than seven (7) hours and fifteen (15) minutes exclusive of lunch. All lunch periods in double or extended sessions will be one hour.
- 2. Excess of forty (40) hours per week exclusive of lunch-time shall be compensated at the rate of time-and-one-half (1-1/2) per hourly rate.
- 3. Work week The work week shall consist of five full working days, Monday through Friday, inclusive, except where legal holidays and vacation periods are included in the work calendar.

- 4. Work year The work year shall be: Ten Month Contract September 1 to June 30 204 days; Twelve Month Contract July 1 to June 30 247 days, exclusive of legal holidays and any other days designated by the Board of Education prescribed work calendar.
- 5. Summer work hours shall be determined by the Superintendent each year.
- 6. If school should dismiss early for reasons of safety such as weather conditions, except excessive heat, employees will be permitted to leave. The day will be considered a full day worked.

When a "delayed opening" is declared, secretarial/clerical employees will report to work one hour after the regular start day.

7. Clerical employees will not be required to work on days that school is closed for students and teaching staff due to inclement weather.

E. Aides

1. Paraprofessionals

- a. <u>School Day</u> Paraprofessionals' school day shall be defined as: at least four (4) hours and fifteen (15) minutes, to seven (7) hours and fifteen (15) minutes maximum. The aides shall sign in and sign out in the office within the prescribed school hours. All part-time aides shall have one paid break of fifteen (15) consecutive minutes.
- b. <u>School Week</u> The school week shall consist of five (5) full working days, Monday through Friday inclusive, except where legal holidays and vacation periods are included in the school calendar.
- c. Work year The paraprofessional work year shall be as follows: 180 paid days when the students are in session plus up to an additional paid four (4) days at the Board's discretion to be placed on the district work calendar when it is developed (with at least 14 calendar days advance notice).

d. Lunch Period (Full-Time Only)

- 1) Paraprofessionals in the elementary program shall receive a duty-free lunch period of forty-five (45) minutes minimum.
- 2) Paraprofessionals in the middle school and secondary program shall receive a duty-free lunch period of forty (40) minutes minimum.

2. Bus Aides

- a. The work calendar shall be set forth by the Board of Education. The work day shall be the prescribed hours.
- b. Work week The work week shall consist of five (5) working days, Monday through Friday inclusive, when so assigned.
- c. The work year shall coincide with the student calendar.
- d. No regularly assigned bus aide shall work less than four (4) hours per day. The Board reserves the right to require employees to perform work related to transportation during non-driving periods of time.

3. Service Aides

- a. The work calendar shall be set forth by the Board of Education. The work day shall be the prescribed hours.
- b. Work week The work week shall consist of five (5) working days, Monday through Friday inclusive, when so assigned.

c. The work year shall coincide with the student calendar.

F. Bus Drivers

- 1. The work calendar shall be set forth by the Board of Education. The work day shall be the prescribed hours.
- 2. Excess of forty (40) hours per week exclusive of lunchtime shall be compensated at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) times the regular rate. However, no driver shall be eligible to choose an additional basic run if the total weekly hours of existing basic runs plus the additional basic run exceeds forty (40) hours.
- 3. Work week The work week shall consist of five (5) working days, Monday through Friday inclusive, when so assigned.

4. Work Year

- a. The work year shall coincide with the student calendar.
- b. The basic work year is 180 days. Drivers hired prior to July 1, 1997 will receive a longevity payment equal to ten (10) days at the driver's per diem rate. This will be paid in equal installments over the 20 pay periods from September through June.
- c. The pay for the work year will be calculated based upon the number of hours in the employee's basic work year (the "to" and "from" regular routes).
- 5. No regularly assigned bus driver shall work less than four (4) hours per day. The Board reserves the right to require employees to perform work related to transportation during non-driving periods of time.
- 6. A regular bus driver who is called in for duty other than his/her regular assignment will work no less than two (2) hours for this duty.
 - a. If a driver is called in to work on a day when he/she is not scheduled, he or she will be guaranteed no less than two (2) hours pay for the full day or whatever number of hours the regular run is assigned.
 - b. On a normal work day when a driver is called in to do an additional run, he or she will be paid no less than one (1) hour for the complete run or whatever number of hours the regular run is assigned. The driver being replaced shall not be paid for such time unless the time is charged to sick leave or personal leave as appropriate.
 - c. During a midday "call-in" when a driver is called, and is not "signed-up" to do an additional run, he/she will be paid a minimum of two hours; however, if the run is longer than two hours, the driver will be paid accordingly.
 - This provision does not apply if the time should overlap with the time the driver is already paid.
 - No driver shall be paid double for services rendered during the work day.
 - d. On any day when a portion of a driver's regularly-assigned runs are not scheduled because a school is not in session, any driver who drives the runs which remain shall be paid for the actual time involved or not less than two (2) hours for the full day, whichever is greater.
- 7. The work year shall include one (1) four (4) hour voluntary session to be used for a Bus Driver Safety Seminar. Only those who attend the Seminar shall be paid.
- 8. An employee who is resigning from his or her position shall give a minimum of two (2) weeks' notice.
- 9. Drivers must be employed under contract on or before February 1 of the school year in order to receive credit for a year of driving experience for the following year.

- 10. Field trips included in the contract shall be administered in accordance with Exhibit A attached.
- 11. Extra Work included in this contract shall be administered in accordance with Exhibit B attached.
- 12. Teachers may drive school buses only in an emergency situation. Teachers who drive must have a valid bus driver's license.
- Employees who are not scheduled to drive their assigned runs because the schools which they serve are not in session shall be entitled to drive the run of a scheduled driver who is absent from work on that day. The selection to cover the run shall be based upon seniority and the employee selected shall be paid his or her appropriate rate.
- 14. Vacancies which open during the school year, shall be posted within five (5) days for a duration of three (3) work days thereof and employees applying shall be considered in accordance with qualifications and seniority (if all things are equal, seniority shall prevail), subject to the Board's transfer rights. Every attempt will be made by the administration to fill the position within two (2) weeks.
- 15. No employee shall be eligible to be assigned to an extracurricular run if he or she has been absent from work on any of the five (5) regularly scheduled work days immediately prior to the date of the run. Absences due to verified Bereavement Leave and/or verified Jury Duty shall not be considered as "absences" for the purpose of this paragraph. An employee who is absent for his/her regularly assigned "to and from" runs on the day of an extra-curricular run shall be ineligible for assignment to that extracurricular run.
- 16. No extra compensation will be paid for early dismissals of students at any school where transportation is provided by the Board.
- 17. Mandatory on-line trainings: The Board will provide a workstation for the completion of such courses.
- 18. Each run shall include an additional 15-minutes of pre-trip inspection. This time will be included in the base, pensionable pay.

G. <u>Cafeteria</u>

- 1. The work calendar shall be set forth by the Board of Education. The work day shall be the prescribed hours.
 - a. Elementary School Hours The hours for Central Early Childhood Center shall be 6 hours. The hours for Shady Lane (1), Oak Valley, Lake Tract, and Good Intent shall be 5 hours. The hours for each of the other elementary schools shall be 5 hours. Note: These hours will be in effect as long as a breakfast program is in effect.
 - b. The supervisor will review the work schedule in each school to determine if additional time or a reduction in time is needed.
- 2. Work performed in excess of forty (40) hours per week shall be paid at one and one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's regular straight-time rate.
 - a. In the event that an employee is called back to work after having been released for the day, he/she shall be paid a minimum of two (2) hours pay at his/her regular straight-time rate if less than forty (40) hours or at one and one-half (1-1/2) times his/her regular straight-time if over forty (40) hours.
- 3. Work Week The work week shall consist of five (5) working days, Monday through Friday inclusive, when so assigned.
- 4. Work Year The work days within the work year shall coincide with the student calendar and/or a minimum of 184 days.
- H. <u>Custodial/Maintenance/Vehicle Mechanics</u> Time Clocks The employer who employs five (5) or more people may have time clocks installed at such operations.

1. Work Day

The working day shall be an eight hour day exclusive of lunch. Working hours shall be designated by the Board of Education. All eight hour employees are entitled to a fifteen (15) minute break during the first four hours of work and an additional fifteen (15) minutes during the second four hour period (both breaks are exclusive of lunch). Lunch is thirty (30) minutes and shall be taken between the third and sixth hour of work.

Any employee required to work during his lunch period shall receive time and one-half hour earlier, but shall work the necessary hours whereby producing one-half hour overtime at the end of his/her working day.

Any employee required to work through his lunch period stated above shall be afforded a twenty (20) minute break to eat his lunch, on Employer's time, after the third (3^{rd}) hour and not later than the sixth (6^{th}) hour.

2. Work Week

The work week shall consist of five (5) full working days, Monday through Friday, inclusive, except where legal holidays and vacation periods are included in the work calendar. Any employee who is called in to work, or who starts to work on any day beyond normal assignment, shall be paid for time worked.

Work Year

The work year shall be: Twelve month contract - July 1 to June 30 - 247 days, exclusive of legal holidays and any other days designated by the Board of Education prescribed work calendar. The work calendar shall be set forth by the Board of Education.

- 4. Any employee required to work in excess of two (2) hours overtime in any one (1) day shall be afforded a twenty (20) minute break period on Employer's time. Any employee required to work in excess of twelve (12) hours in any one (1) day shall be entitled to an additional twenty (20) minute break on Employer's time.
- 5. Security Check Any employee required to work on Saturday or Sunday for security check shall receive one and one-half (1) times the hourly rate of pay for a minimum of two (2) hours.
- 6. Holidays Any employee required to work on any of the holidays stipulated in the calendar approved by the Board each year shall receive two (2) times his/her regular rate of pay.
- 7. All employees are required to work, if scheduled. (Monday through Friday) the day before and the day after a holiday in order to receive compensation for the holiday, excluding sick leave.

8. Overtime

A. Custodial/Maintenance

No employee shall be entitled to receive overtime pay except for overtime actually worked.

If an employee has excessive or habitual lateness, he/she shall be docked for the total lateness involved.

Overtime shall be assigned on an equitable rotating basis by seniority within each building or department, as the case may be. The Employer shall endeavor to roughly equalize overtime; however, mathematical precision shall not be required. The Employer shall maintain a record of overtime offered, accepted of refused, and shall take into account absences due to illness.

a. No employee shall be eligible for overtime work if he/she has been absent from work on any of the five (5) regularly scheduled work days prior to the date of the overtime work, unless such absence is due to approved vacation or an approved personal day under Article XII, A, 2. The above provision may be

waived at the discretion of the Supervisor.

- b. Saturdays Any employee required to work on Saturdays shall receive time and one half (1) for all hours worked with a minimum of four (4) hours.
- c. Sundays or holidays Any employee required to work on Sundays or holidays shall receive two (2) times the hourly rate of pay with a minimum or four (4) hours
- d. Any employee required to work in excess of eight (8) hours in any day, Monday through Friday, or in excess of forty (40) hours per week, shall receive time and one-half (1).
- e. In the event that an employee is called back to work during a weekday within the eight (8) hour "off duty" period, he/she shall be compensated at one and one-half (1) times his/her applicable hourly rate of pay. The employee will receive a minimum of two hours of overtime pay. (No minimum hours if the employee stays and works past their eight (8) hour day.) The maximum number of hours allowed per day is sixteen (16).
- f. In any building where five (5) or more employees are assigned, a monthly overtime sign-up sheet will be posted on the bulletin board by the time clock area. All employees interested in working overtime for the following month are to sign the list. Those employees not signing the overtime sheet will be charged with the hours as if they had worked the time for the month. Late signers will be charged with the hours worked at the time they sign up.
- g. An employee with the lowest accumulated hours to date will have their choice of overtime within that particular workweek at the time the overtime was offered. Employee(s) who is assigned to work on their regular shift on an evening prior to a holiday, and whose work ends on the holiday, shall work the necessary hours to complete that day's work at the regular rate. All hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours will be at the holiday rate of two (2) times the hourly rate of pay.

B. Vehicle Mechanics

- a. For inspections, vehicle mechanics will earn overtime for the extra hours worked
- b. Any mechanic who is required to work on Saturdays or Sundays for emergencies will receive a minimum of four hours overtime. For weekends with snow emergencies, there will be a minimum of four hours that can be used as overtime.
- c. Saturday employees shall receive time and one half (1) times the hourly rate and Sundays and holidays two (2) times the hourly rate.
- d. During the weekdays, when overtime is paid, the employee will only be paid for the actual hours worked. There is no minimum amount of hours for overtime being paid. Any mechanic called back to work after hours during the week (M-F) will receive a minimum of two (2) hours overtime.
- e. All employees are required to work, if scheduled. (Monday through Friday) the day before and the day after a holiday in order to receive compensation for the holiday, excluding sick leave.
- I. <u>Athletic Trainer</u> The Athletic Trainer will receive an annual and pensionable five-thousand dollar (\$5,000) stipend for work performed in the month of August.

- J. The position of 11-month nurse shall be paid a pensionable stipend of \$7,000 in 20 equal installments. The 11-month nurse shall work twenty (20) summer hour days of their choosing in coordination with building administration between the months of July and August.
- K. The position of 11-month guidance counselor shall be paid a pensionable stipend of \$7,000 in 20 equal installments. The 11-month guidance counselor shall work twenty (20) summer hour days of their choosing in coordination with building administration between the months of July and August.
- L. Teachers holding a current National Board Certification shall be paid a stipend of \$2,000. Half of this stipend shall be paid in the final pay period in December and the other half shall be paid in the final pay period in June.
- M. The position of Teacher Leader shall be paid a \$5,000 pensionable stipend in 20 equal installments from September through June according to the regular payroll period. In addition to a regular, daily lunch and preparation period, this individual will have one (1) daily period off to assist district staff.

ARTICLE VII - EMPLOYMENT AND SALARY

All employees under this contract are required to use Direct Deposit where their wages from each pay are directly deposited into the employee's bank account in the bank of their choice.

All regular employees covered under this Agreement shall be paid in accordance with pay procedures of the district. When the regular pay day occurs on a holiday, the Employer shall pay the employees on the regular work day immediately preceding the holiday.

The Board is not obligated to fill all positions in the budget. Such a function is a managerial prerogative from year to year.

A. Teacher

- 1. The best qualified shall be given full consideration. Job openings shall be posted in all district buildings and a copy to the Association President. Certification requirements shall be made known to all applicants for professional positions. The Board shall act upon the recommendation of the Superintendent.
- 2. Agreement as to initial salary whenever a person shall hereafter accept office, position or employment as a member of the Deptford Township Public School District, his/her initial place on the salary schedule shall be at such point as may be agreed upon by the employee and the Deptford Township Board of Education.
- 3. Years of Employment shall mean employment as a fully certified teacher for one academic year in any publicly owned and operated college, school or other institution of learning for one (1) academic year in this or any other state or territory of the United States.
- 4. Credit for Military Service Every member who, after July 1, 1949, has served or hereafter shall serve, in the active military or naval service, in the Women's Army Corps, the Women's Reserve of the Naval Reserve, or any similar organization authorized by the United States to serve with the Army or Navy, in time of war or an emergency, or for or during any period of training, or pursuant to or in connection with the operation of any system of selective service, shall be entitled to receive equivalent years of employment credit for such service as if he had been employed for the same period of time in some publicly owned and operated college, school or institution of learning in this or any other state or territory of the United States, except that the period of such service shall not be credited toward more than four (4) employment or adjustment increment.
- 5. Upon recommendation of the Superintendent, the Board may withhold, for inefficiency or other good cause, any increment of any employee in any year. It shall be the duty of the Board to give written notice of such action, together with the reasons therefore, to the employee concerned. Within ten (10) days of receiving the written notice, the employee may appeal, in writing, to the Board, the recommendation of the Superintendent to withhold such increment.
 - Such denied increment may be granted in succeeding years, nonretroactive, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent provided all deficiencies have been removed.
- 6. Salary Guide The salary guides for teachers covered by this Agreement shall be as set forth in the attached teachers' salary schedules.
 - a. There shall be no horizontal move on the teachers' salary schedules in regard to any course credits beyond the bachelors or masters degrees except for graduate school course credits obtained after said degree has been conferred. The graduate school course credits must have been obtained from an accredited college or university and taken at facilities maintained by that college or university or on-line through an accredited college or university. The courses must be in the field of education and must be taken in connection with a predetermined objective which is designed to improve the teacher's skills and enhance the teacher's value to the school district. Exceptions may be granted by the Superintendent for employees working toward additional certification.
 - b. A teacher shall be credited for salary increment purposes as follows:

- 91 days or less no credit
- 92 or more days full credit

This is based upon 184 work days. Paid time off shall count as days worked.

- 7. Continuous Employment
 - a. Staff on the payroll prior to 7/1/2009 are grandfathered in the existing longevity system. An additional salary increment of two hundred (200) dollars will be granted on the 4th, 8th, 12th, 16* years etc. for continuous service in the district.
 - b. New hires on or after 7/1/2009, who attain fifteen (15) years of continuous employment in the District shall receive longevity as follows:
 - at 15 years through 19 years an additional one thousand (\$1,000) dollars per year,
 - at 20 years through 24 years an additional one thousand two hundred fifty (\$1,250) dollars per year,
 - at 25 years plus an additional one thousand five hundred (\$1,500) dollars per year.
- 8. Supplemental Salary Guide Guidance counselors, speech correctionists, reading, and special education teachers:

<u>YEAR</u>	<u>SALARY</u>
1st year	\$200
2nd year	\$300
3rd year	\$400

This provision shall not apply to employees on or after July 1, 1987, except that those who received pay hereunder as of June 30, 1987, shall continue to receive such pay so long as they remain working in one of the categories set forth.

- 9. Department Heads/Team Leaders/Head Teachers
 - a. All department heads, team leaders and head teachers shall be paid a pensionable stipend of \$2,000 in twenty (20) equal payments from September through June according to the regular payroll period. In addition to six head teachers, one in each elementary and early childhood building, the following department heads/team leaders shall exist:

Special Education	(1 Middle, 1 High School)
English	(1 Middle, 1 High School)
Math	(1 Middle, 1 High School)
Science	(1 Middle, 1 High School)
Social Studies	(1 Middle, 1 High School)
Health / P.E.	(1 Middle, 1 High School)
The Arts	(1 High School)
Special Areas	(1 Middle School)

b. A job description for all department heads, team leaders and head teachers shall be submitted to the staff holding the respective positions prior to appointment.

10. Co-Curricular Activities

- a. Establishment of an activity with extra compensation and number of personnel assigned shall be determined by the Board of Education. Co-curricular salaries shall be as set forth in the attached salary schedules.
- b. Any employee who does not substantially complete his/her co-curricular assignment shall have the salary therefore reduced proportionately. In the event that the remainder of

that assignment is completed by another employee in a demonstrable way, that employee shall be paid the difference between the amount paid to the first employee and the salary set forth in the Co-Curricular Salary Guide.

Termination Notice - Each tenured contract shall contain a 60-day notice of termination clause as well as a provision that the Board has the right to waive such clause. Each non-tenured contract shall contain a 30-day notice of termination clause as well as a provision that the Board has the right to waive such clause.

B. Clerical

- 1. The best qualified shall be given full consideration. Job openings shall be posted in all district buildings and an e-mail copy shall be sent to the Association President. The Board shall act upon the recommendation of the Superintendent.
- 2. For the purposes of this procedure, seniority is defined as the length of service, district-wide, from the last date of hire. Employees who were hired on the same date will be carried on the seniority list alphabetically by last name. However, in the event of a RIF, a determination of who is retained shall be by skill and ability.
- 3. Notice of each clerical-secretarial position opening will be posted for a period of five (5) working days.
- 4. Employees who wish to apply for open positions should reply to the Superintendent's Office during the five (5) day posting period. The best qualified shall be given full consideration.
- 5. Each applicant will be notified by the Superintendent of the status of the position.
- 6. Initial salary on the secretarial guide for new employees shall be determined by the Superintendent, pending Board approval, and agreed upon by the employee as long as it meets the minimum starting salaries listed in Exhibit 3. Thereafter, salaries will be paid in accordance with the agreed upon negotiated amount.
- 7. Nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit the Board from filling vacancies from outside of the bargaining unit.
- 8. Clerical employees will be paid a longevity payment of \$200 starting after 10 years of service; \$200 starting after 15 years of service; \$250 starting after 20 years of service and \$300 starting after 25 years of service for a cumulative maximum of nine hundred fifty (\$950) dollars.

C. Aides

- 1. Paraprofessionals
 - a. The best qualified shall be given full consideration. Job openings shall be posted in all district buildings and an e-mail copy shall be sent to the Association President. The Board shall act upon the recommendation of the Superintendent.
- 2. Bus
 - a. The best qualified shall be given full consideration. Job openings shall be posted in all district buildings and an e-mail copy shall be sent to the Association President. The Board shall act upon the recommendation of the Superintendent.
 - b. Seniority
 - A seniority list shall be posted prior to the establishing of the bus run assignments. Advance notice of the posting of runs for the coming school year will be given to all employees and the Association President in writing no sooner than two weeks in advance. The list of runs will be posted in writing in the department office and e-mailed to all employees and the Association President. Employees will have one full seven (7) day calendar week to choose their run, either in-person or electronically.

- 2) Seniority shall prevail in the selection of regular assignments.
- 3) School district seniority is defined as service by appointed employees in the school district in the collective bargaining unit covered by this Agreement.

3. Service

a. The best qualified shall be given full consideration. Job openings shall be posted in all district buildings and an e-mail copy shall be sent to the Association President. The Board shall act upon the recommendation of the Superintendent.

D. Drivers

1. Seniority

- a. A seniority list shall be posted prior to the establishing of the bus run assignments. Advance notice of the posting of runs for the coming school year will be given to all employees and the Association President in writing no sooner than two weeks in advance. The list of runs will be posted in writing in the department office and e-mailed to all employees and the Association President. Employees will have one full seven (7) day calendar week to choose their run, either in-person or electronically.
- b. Seniority shall prevail in the selection of regular assignments.
- c. School district seniority is defined as service by appointed employees in the school district in the collective bargaining unit covered by this Agreement.
- d. The principles set forth in N.J.S.A. 18A:28-9 through 11 shall govern reduction in force.
- e. In the event of reduction in force, the employees shall retain recall rights for a period not exceeding two (2) years from the date of the last employment with the School district.

2. Salary Rates

a. Drivers

Tier placement for Bus Drivers is determined by the number of years credited at the beginning of the contract year. (As per Article 6, F. 9.)

Special Education Runs

The special education stipend shall apply to runs to schools for the handicapped. This annual stipend applies exclusively to routes when only classified students are being transported. Half of this stipend shall be paid in the final pay period in December and the other half shall be paid in the final pay period in June.

2 Way \$300 1 Way \$200

c. Bus Washing

The hourly rate for bus washing shall be as follows:

January 1, 2023: \$14/hour January 1, 2024: \$15/hour

- d. All permanent employees who are driving summer runs shall receive their regular hourly rate as of September 1 of the prior year.
- e. All drivers shall receive their regular rate to complete one practice run of their route prior to the first day of school.

3. Criminal History Background Check

The Board agrees to reimburse the fee for the Criminal History Background Check when the CDL license is renewed every four years. Names of drivers who have renewed during the current school year along with verification of payment will be provided to the Superintendent. In order to receive the reimbursement, the employee must remain with the school district. If an employee chooses to leave the district other than for retirement purposes, he or she will be responsible to repay the cost of the Criminal History Background Check reimbursed by the Board. This repayment fee will be deducted from his or her final paycheck.

E. Cafeteria

- 1. The Board of Education reserves to itself the employment of all cafeteria workers upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools.
- 2. Cafeteria job vacancies shall be posted in all district buildings and an e-mail copy shall be sent to the Association President. Interested employees may apply. The best qualified shall be given full consideration.
- 3. Qualifications and work performance shall prevail in the selection of regular assignments within the assigned buildings, provided the employee has the requisite ability to perform the work.
- 4. All applicants who shall come within this Agreement shall have equal opportunity to qualify for any assignment within the scope of this Agreement. Length of service shall be the factor in selecting among equally qualifying individuals.
- 5. For purposes of reduction in force and recall, school district seniority is defined as service by appointed employees in the school district in the collective bargaining unit covered by this Agreement. An appointed employee shall lose all accumulated school district seniority only if he/she:
 - a. Resigns or is discharged for cause, irrespective of whether he is subsequently rehired by the school district.
- 6. Principles set forth in NJSA 18A 28-9 through 11 shall govern reduction in force.
- 7. In the event of reduction in force, the employees shall retain recall rights for a period not exceeding two (2) years from the date of last employment with the school district.
- 8. Salary

Effective July 1, 2016, the hourly wage for new cafeteria workers shall be as outlined in Exhibit 5.

Cooks at the elementary schools shall receive an additional one-dollar (\$1.00) per hour.

9. Special Assignment

- a. Banquet Service: Special assignment for each type of banquet shall be made on a rotating basis of the seniority list within the following classifications after the posting of each banquet. Forty- eight (48) hours notice shall be given to Association representatives pertaining to special assignments.
- b. A.M. cafeteria workers working special assignments shall be given one free meal to be determined by the manager.
- c. Employees working as an elementary cook will receive a \$1/hour pay differential.

F. Custodial/Maintenance

- 1. The Deptford Township Board of Education shall retain the right to hire as per the New Jersey Statutes Title 18A.
- 2. The Deptford Township Board of Education shall execute the standard form of school employee's contract incorporating the fifteen (15) day termination clause by either party, said contract subject to annual reissuance in accordance with Title 18A of the New Jersey Statutes.

- 3. Following the discharge or resignation of the employee, the Association shall be notified in writing.
- 4. Work performed in any classification covered under this Agreement shall be performed by employees covered under this Agreement and/or the employees' foreman so classified.
- 5. Employees who are required to work in more than one job classification during their working hours of any day shall be paid for the entire day at the rate of the highest job classification.
- 6. Seniority Principle
 - a. The employee shall be immediately placed on the district-wide seniority list and building seniority list and shall gain seniority status from the date of his employment as recorded in the official minutes of the Board of Education, provided that for the purpose of layoffs and recalls there shall be four (4) seniority lists as follows:
 - 1. Maintenance
 - 2. Grounds
 - 3. Painters
 - 4. Custodians
 - b. Once each year, during the month of July, the Employer shall compile and submit to the Association in writing, and then post in a conspicuous place, a district-wide seniority list and a building- assigned seniority list or lists from the regular payroll records. Any employees hired after said posting shall have their names added to the list, in order of the date of hire, and the Association shall be notified of such additions. Any controversy over the seniority standing of any employee on the seniority list or lists shall be submitted as a grievance.
 - c. If the Employer establishes different starting times for employees in the same job classification, the senior man among those assigned to the building if qualified in the classification, shall have the choice. For example where the employer schedules one employee to commence work at 7:00 am, another at 8:00 am, and a third at 9:00 am, the senior employee shall have the choice of deciding which of the three he prefers. Similarly, the qualified senior man in the same job classification shall have the choice, he shall continue on the starting time until such starting time is discontinued or until a change is mutually agreeable to the Employer and the Association.
 - d. Inability to work because of proven illness or injury shall not result in loss of seniority rights. An employee who is absent because of illness or injury shall accumulate seniority for the purpose of determining his place on the seniority list.
 - e. Seniority shall be broken and name removed from the seniority list for the following reasons:
 - 1. Discharge
 - 2. Voluntary resignation
 - 3. Unauthorized leave of absence
 - f. Any employee with the Agreement who elects to become part of management shall lose all seniority rights after thirty (30) days if the employee elects to stay in management. If the employee decides to return to the bargaining unit at the end of thirty (30) days, he may do so without loss of seniority rights.

7. Layoff & Recall

a. Should it become necessary to layoff employees, the Employer shall give consideration to both qualifications and seniority. If qualifications are equal, then seniority will prevail. Recall of employees form layoff will be subject to the same considerations.

- b. The Employer, when recalling laid off employees, shall send an email or certified letter to the employee's last known address (as indicated on employee's records) and the employee shall have seven (7) days to respond to such recall notice. After the employee notifies the Employer that he will return to work, the employee shall have one (1) week to adjust any other personal matters he may have. If the employee fails to report within the one (1) week period, he shall lose all recall rights under the contract.
- c. The Employer agrees to give thirty (30) days' notice whenever making layoffs, to the Association. Notice must be given in writing. Where such required notice is not given, the Employer shall pay the employee thirty (30) days wages in lieu thereof.

8. Promotions

All employees shall have equal opportunity to qualify for any assignment within the scope of this Agreement. In assigning employees to jobs coming within this Agreement, the Employer shall have the right to select qualified persons, but between qualified persons, preference shall be given according to seniority. All open positions coming within this Agreement will be posted in all schools. The Board may fill the assignment from within or without the bargaining unit.

9. Maintenance of Standards

- a. The Employer agrees that all conditions of the employment relating to wages, hours of work, overtime differentials, and general working conditions shall be maintained at the same level in effect at the time of the signing of this Agreement. It is agreed that the provisions of this section shall not apply to inadvertent or bona fide errors made by the Employer or the Association in applying the terms and conditions of this Agreement if such error is corrected within ninety (90) days from the date of error.
- b. This provision does not give the Employer the right to impose or continue wages, hours, and working conditions less than those contained in this contract.
- c. The employer retains the right to maintain a system to monitor employee time in and out.

10. Separation of Employment

Upon discharge, the Employer shall pay all monies due to the employee, including vacations and holiday pay. Upon resigning, the Employer shall pay all monies due the employee, including vacations and holiday pay, on the pay day of the Employer in the following pay period, up to and including separation.

11. No employees shall be discharged or otherwise disciplined or penalized as a result of any attachment, execution or assignment of his wages, whether voluntary or involuntary.

12. Classification and Salary Rates

- a. Agreement as to initial salary Whenever a person shall hereafter accept a position of employment as a member of the Deptford Township Public School District, his initial salary shall be at the rate agreed upon by the Association and the Deptford Township Board of Education.
- b. The custodian at each building who is responsible for security shall receive an annual stipend as follows:

High School	\$400.00
Middle School	\$400.00
Shady Lane	\$200.00
Good Intent	\$200.00
Lake Tract	\$200.00
Oak Valley	\$200.00
Central	\$200.00
Pine Acres	\$200.00

c. The salary of each current employee shall be increased as outlined in Exhibit 5.

The position of Grounds Group Leader shall receive an annual stipend of \$2,000.

The position of Certified Electrician shall receive an annual stipend of \$1,000.

d. Boiler, insecticide, pesticide designated as 3A, 3B, 7A and refrigeration licenses shall be as follows:

Effective July 1, 1999, increase to \$150/year for employees who now have the license or for those employees who are now waiting to take the test and who pass it. Any other employee who hereinafter received a boiler license will not receive the \$150 unless that employee is regularly assigned to a school with a 100 H.P. boiler. The Board will also pay for renewals.

Any employee who wishes to obtain any of the above licenses must obtain prior approval from the Supervisor of Buildings and Grounds. Reimbursement for tuition and fees will occur upon: approval, successful completion of the course and submission of receipts.

13. Discharge or Suspension

- a. No employee may be dismissed or suspended without just cause. Nothing shall prohibit the Association from investigating any dismissal or suspension and resorting to the grievance procedure provided in this Agreement.
- b. Until the case has been discussed with the Association, no employee may be dismissed or suspended within the termination clause of the employee contract, except:
 - 1. Where the provisions of this Article provide for immediate dismissal or suspension.
- c. In the event that it is decided, as provided in the Grievance Procedure set forth in this Agreement, that the suspension or discharge was without just cause, the decision may provide for reinstatement with or without pay, the Employer shall not receive any credit for wages or compensation earned by the employee while he was out of the Employer's employ.
- d. Except where an emergency prevents it, grievances concerning dismissal or suspension shall be advanced over all other matters pending for grievance hearings and shall be promptly heard.
- e. Except in the case of immediate dismissal for the causes set forth below, and subject to the work rules of 2/8/77 as amended, no employee may be dismissed or suspended for his offense but shall receive at least one (1) written warning for each different offense.
- f. The parties agree that cause for immediate dismissal without first discussing the matter with the Association shall be the following:
 - 1. Calling or participating in any unauthorized strike, work stoppage or walk-out.
 - 2. Drunkenness, proven during work hours, or being under the influence of alcohol or use of a controlled dangerous substances during work hours.
 - 3. Unprovoked assault on his/her Employer or his/her Employer's representative, or an employee, during work hours.
 - 4. Proven theft or dishonesty.
- g. In each instance, the Employer shall promptly notify the Association of the action taken, in writing. The parties agree that a dismissal or suspension shall not be subject to the grievance procedure or arbitration as provided in this Agreement unless the Association shall have notified the Employer, in writing, of the intention to do so within two (2) weeks of the dismissal or suspension. The parties recognize that in interpreting previous Agreements there have been difficulties over whether or not the Employer may

dismiss employees for slow-downs. The parties agree that this matter is cause for suspension pending grievance procedure but not for immediate dismissal.

G. Vehicle Mechanics

- 1. The Deptford Township Board of Education shall retain the right to hire as per the New Jersey Statutes Title 18 A.
- 2. The Deptford Township Board of Education shall execute the standard form of school employee's contract incorporating the fifteen (15) day termination clause by either party, said contract subject to annual re-issuance in accordance with Title 18A of the New Jersey Statutes.
- 3. In case of discharge or resignation of the employee, the Association shall be notified in writing.
- 4. Work performed in any classification covered under this Agreement shall be performed by employees covered under this Agreement and/or the employees' foreman so classified.

5. <u>Layoff</u>

- a. Should it become necessary to layoff employees, the Employer shall give consideration to both qualifications and seniority. If qualifications are equal, then seniority will prevail. Recall of employees from layoff will be subject to the same considerations.
- b. The Employer agrees to give thirty (30) days notice whenever making layoffs, to the Association. Notice must be given in writing. Where such required notice is not given, the Employer shall pay the employee thirty (30) days wages in lieu thereof.

Maintenance of Standards

- a. The Employer agrees that all conditions of the employment relating to wages, hours of work, overtime differentials and general working conditions shall be maintained at not less than the highest standards in effect at the time of the signing of this Agreement. It is agreed that the provisions of this section shall not apply to inadvertent or bona fide errors made by the Employer or the Association applying the terms and conditions of this Agreement if such error is corrected within ninety (90) days from the date of error.
- b. This provision does not give the Employer the right to impose or continue wages, hours, and working conditions less than those contained in this contract.
- c. The employer retains the right to maintain a system to monitor employee time in and out.

Separation of Employment

Upon discharge, the Employer shall pay all monies due to the employee, including vacations and holiday pay. Upon resigning, the Employer shall pay all monies due the employee, including vacations and holiday pay, on the pay day of the Employer in the following pay period, up to and including separation.

8. No employees shall be discharged or otherwise disciplined or penalized as a result of any attachment, execution or assignment of his wages, whether voluntary or involuntary.

Salary Rates

The salary of each current employee shall be increased as outlined in Exhibit 5.

Discharge or Suspension

a. No employee may be dismissed or suspended without just cause. Nothing shall prohibit the Association from investigating any dismissal or suspension and resorting to the grievance procedure provided in this Agreement.

- b. Until the case has been discussed with the Association, no employee may be dismissed or suspended within the termination cause of the employee contract, except:
 - 1. Where the provisions of this Article provide for immediate dismissal or suspension.
 - 2. Where an emergency prevents it, a grievance concerning dismissal or suspension shall be advanced over all other matters pending for grievance hearings and shall be promptly heard.
 - 3. In the case of immediate dismissal for the causes set forth below, and subject to the work rules, no employee may be dismissed or suspended for his offense but shall receive at least one (1) written warning for each different offense.
- c. The parties agree that cause for immediate dismissal without first discussing the matter with the Association shall be the following:
 - 1. Calling or participating in any unauthorized strike, work stoppage or walk-out.
 - 2. Drunkenness, proven during work hours, or being under the influence of alcohol during work hours.
 - 3. Unprovoked assault on his Employer or his Employer's representative during work hours.
 - 4. Proven theft or dishonesty.
 - 5. Use of Controlled substances.
- d. In each instance, the Employer shall promptly notify the Association of the action taken, in writing. The parties agree that a dismissal or suspension shall not be subject to the grievance procedure or arbitration as provided in this Agreement unless the Association shall have notified the Employer, in writing, of the intention to do so within two (2) weeks of the dismissal or suspension. The parties recognize that in interpreting previous Agreements there have been difficulties over whether or not the Employer may dismiss employees for slowdowns. The parties agree that this matter is cause for suspension pending grievance procedure but not for immediate dismissal.

ARTICLE VIII – EMPLOYEE TRANSFER. ASSIGNMENT AND REASSIGNMENT

A. Teachers

1. <u>Definitions:</u>

Transfer is defined as a change from one building to another with a possible change of assignment. Assignment is defined as –

In elementary - a grade level In secondary - a certified subject area at a specified level

Vacancy and/or new position are defined as an unoccupied position which requires additional certification beyond a standard teacher's certificate and would result in an increase in salary for a currently employed teacher.

- 2. <u>Teacher Initiated Transfer</u> The teacher shall submit his/her request for transfer for the succeeding year to the Superintendent of Schools, in writing, by February 1. This request shall include the transfer desired and the reasons for the request. Such requests represent consent to transfer and may be acted upon without further consultation with the teacher. The Superintendent shall implement his/her action.
- 3. <u>Administration Initiated Transfer</u> The Superintendent shall notify the teacher whose transfer is pending. Within fifteen (15) days of being advised of the pending transfer, the teacher shall be provided the opportunity of discussing the pending transfer and any objections shall be duly considered. The Superintendent shall implement his/her decision.
- 4. <u>Teacher Initiated Reassignment</u> The teacher shall submit his/her request for reassignment for the succeeding year to the building principal, in writing, by February 1. This request shall include the assignment desired and the reasons for the request. Such requests represent consent to reassignment and may be acted upon without further consultation with the teacher. The principal, subject to ratification by the Superintendent, shall implement his/her decision.
- 5. <u>Administration Initiated Reassignment</u> the principal shall notify the teacher whose reassignment is pending. The teacher shall be provided the opportunity of discussing the pending reassignment and any objections shall be duly considered. The principal, subject to ratification by the Superintendent, shall implement his/her decision.
- 6. Transfer and/or reassignment shall be restricted normally to the opening date of school or it may be made at other times when deemed necessary by the Superintendent. Seniority shall be one of the factors considered in evaluating a request for transfer and/or reassignment. An exchange of two teacher assignments within a building, at the request of the teachers involved who hold comparable certification may be permitted at the discretion of the principal. An exchange of two teachers, involving transfer, at the request of the teachers involved, who hold comparable certification, may be permitted at the discretion of the Superintendent. Requests for transfer and/or reassignment shall be renewed annually.
- 7. Vacancies and/or new positions as defined in this Article shall be announced by posting in the schools as a vacancy or new position occurs. Vacancies created by teacher reassignment need not be posted. Applications shall be made to the Superintendent of Schools.
- 8. Tentative School Designation Tentative school building designations shall be indicated in addition to elementary grade level and/or secondary certified subject area with the issuance of salary statements and/or contracts on or before May 15th if administratively feasible, provided a completed Agreement has been reached for the succeeding year. Employees shall return contracts on or before June 1.

- B. Clerical, Aides Paraprofessional / Service, Bus Aides, Bus Drivers, Cafeteria
 - 1. Transfer of personnel shall take place at the request of the employee or by the Superintendent of Schools.
 - Employee Initiated Transfer The employee shall submit his/her request for transfer to the supervisor in writing when the opening occurs. This request shall include the placement desired and the reasons for the request.

The supervisor may interview the employee initiating the request.

After consulting with the Superintendent, the supervisor shall notify the employee concerning the decision made.

3. <u>Administration Initiated Transfers</u> - After consultation with the Superintendent, the supervisor shall notify the employee whose transfer is pending within fifteen (15) days of being advised of the pending transfer. The employee shall be provided the opportunity of discussing the pending transfer and any objections shall be duly considered.

After the completion of the consultation, the supervisor shall notify the employee of his/her decision concerning the transfer.

Fair Employment Procedures

- a. Employees shall not be reduced in compensation without just cause.
- b. Non-renewal of non-tenured employees shall not be subject to the grievance procedure and the Board retains all rights in regard thereto. Such an employee may request reasons in writing for the non-renewal within fifteen (15) days after receiving notice thereof. The reasons shall be supplied within fifteen (15) days after the request. Within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the reasons, the employee may request an informal hearing before the Board concerning said reasons. Said hearing to be held within thirty (30) days after receipt of the request. Board may notify the affected member, in writing of its final determination; but if there is no change in the Board's disposition, then no notice is required.
- 5. <u>Tentative School Designation</u>: Tentative school building designations for paraprofessionals shall be indicated with the issuance of salary statements and/or contracts on or before June 15th if administratively feasible. Employees shall return contracts on or before June 30th.

C. Custodial/Maintenance

- 1. Transfer of personnel shall take place at the request of the employee or by the Superintendent or designee.
- 2. <u>Employee Initiated Transfer</u> The employee shall submit his/her request for transfer to the Supervisor of Buildings and Grounds in writing when the opening occurs. This request shall include the placement desired, the reasons for the request and a resume.

The Supervisor of Buildings and Grounds shall interview night custodial personnel. Day custodial personnel shall be interviewed by the Building Principal and the Supervisor of Building and Grounds.

Decisions are based on qualifications, attendance records, the interview and seniority. If all things are equal, seniority will be the deciding factor.

After consulting with the Business Administrator, the Supervisor of Buildings and Grounds shall notify the employee concerning the decision made. Any subsequent moves are covered under administrative transfers.

3. <u>Administration Initiated Transfers</u> - After consultation with the Business Administrator, the Supervisor of Buildings and Grounds shall notify the employee whose transfer is pending within

- fifteen (15) days of being advised of the pending transfer. The employee shall be provided the opportunity of discussing the pending transfer and any objections shall be duly considered.
- 4. When a daytime custodial position becomes available, all currently employed full-time custodial members shall be notified of the vacancy and shall be given an opportunity to be considered for appointment to fill the vacancy before any such vacancy is posted.

D. Grounds Transfer Procedure:

- 1. Due to the nature of the jobs, certain qualifications, work experience, and certificates/licenses are required.
- 2. Job openings are posted in the district.
- 3. Letters of intent and a resume are required from interested personnel.
- 4. If an in-house employee is selected, the transfer procedure is the same as for custodians, (as per Article VIII, H 1&2).
- 5. If no district candidate is qualified, the position will be advertised in the local newspaper and candidates from the outside will be interviewed and considered for appointment.

ARTICLE IX - EMPLOYEE EVALUATION

A. Teachers

- 1. Principals shall keep employees informed as to whether or not the kind of service they are rendering is satisfactory in terms of the standards of the school district. Evaluation reports are to be sent to the employees by the principals with copies forwarded to the Superintendent.
- 2. Evaluations shall be given to the employee for his/her signature and comments prior to submission of the reports to the Superintendent. These evaluations shall include suggestions for improvement.
- 3. The use of audio system for observing teacher performance, if necessary, shall be used only with the teacher's knowledge.
- 4. Upon prior written notice, employees shall be permitted to examine evaluation reports in their personnel folder as maintained in the office of the Superintendent in the presence of an administrator.
- 5. A teacher shall, upon written request to the Superintendent, be granted a teacher observation made by an additional administrator to be assigned by the office of the Superintendent.
- 6. All non-tenure teachers shall be evaluated three times per year. Suggested schedule is: November, January and March but not less than two evaluations prior to February.
- 7. No observations shall be conducted until after the first full week of school.
- 8. Teacher evaluations will be consistent with the Teacher Effectiveness and Accountability for the Children of New Jersey Act (TEACH NJ), *N.J.S.A.* 18A:6-117 *et al.*
- B. Clerical, Aides Paraprofessional / Service, Bus Aides, Bus Drivers, Cafeteria, Custodial/Maintenance, Vehicle Mechanics
 - 1. The immediate supervisor shall keep employees informed as to whether or not the kind of service they are rendering is satisfactory in terms of the standards of the school district. Evaluation reports are to be sent to the employee by the supervisor with copies forwarded to the Superintendent.
 - 2. Evaluation reports shall include strengths, weaknesses, and specific suggestions for improvement.
 - 3. Evaluation reports shall be given to the employee for his/her signature and comments prior to submission of the reports to the Superintendent.

C. Custodial/Maintenance

- 1. The Supervisor of Buildings and Grounds shall keep employees informed as to whether or not the kind of service they are rendering is satisfactory in terms of the standards of the school district including in this is the employees' work performance and absenteeism.
- 2. Principals, Assistant Supervisor of Buildings and Grounds, and the Supervisor of Buildings and Grounds are part of the evaluation process.
- 3. Letters detailing good or bad performance are placed in the employee's file to be reviewed during the evaluation. A copy of the letter is given to the employee at the time the letter was sent.
- 4. Evaluation reports include strengths, weaknesses, and specific suggestions for improvement.
- 5. Written evaluation shall be given to the employees for his/her signature and comments prior to submission of the reports to the Superintendent and /or designee.

D. Vehicle Mechanics

1. The Transportation Supervisor, with advisement from the Head Mechanic shall keep the Vehicle Mechanics informed as to whether or not the kind of service they are rendering is satisfactory. Evaluation reports are to be provided to the employee by the Transportation Supervisor, which the

employee and the evaluator will both sign. Once signed, a copy of the evaluation form will be provided to the employee and copies are forwarded to the Business Administrator as well as the Superintendent's Office for insertion into the employee's personnel file.

2. Evaluation reports include strengths, weaknesses, and specific suggestions for improvement.

ARTICLE X - EMPLOYEE LIAISON

A. The Association representative may meet with the Superintendent at least once every calendar quarter during the school year to review and discuss current problems and practices of mutual interest and the administration of this Agreement. Neither the Superintendent nor the Board shall be required to engage in collective negotiations during these meetings.

ARTICLE XI - SICK LEAVE

- A. Definition of Sick Leave Sick leave is hereby defined to mean the absence from duty of any person because of physical disability, illness or injury, or quarantine or exclusion from school by medical authorities.
- B. Sick Leave Allowable All persons who are steadily employed full time by the Board of Education shall be allowed sick leave with full pay as follows:

10 month term - 10 days

11 month term - 11 days

12 month term - 12 days

Sick leave days may be taken in increments of whole or half days for all work groups.

- C. Accumulated Sick Leave Allowable sick leave not utilized in any year shall be cumulative to be used for additional sick leave in subsequent years. Sick leave for new employees shall be prorated for the first year of employment based upon the date of hire. Effective July 1, 2022 onward, sick leave will not be prorated in the final year of employment for any reason. In the event an employee has exhausted all of his/her sick leave days, the Superintendent may allow unused personal days to be used as sick leave days.
- D. Physician's Certificate Required for Sick Leave. The Superintendent of Schools may require a physician's certificate to be filed with his office in order to obtain sick leave.
- E. Workers' Compensation The time lost from employment under the Workers' Compensation Act shall not be deducted from days permitted for regular sick leave allowance.
- F. Special Pay Plan

The Deptford Township Board of Education hereby extends a "Special Pay Plan" (403(b) Plan) for retirement to members of the Deptford Education Association (DEA) subject to the following terms and conditions:

- 1. Plan Requirements: At retirement, as per Article XI, Sections F & G of the contract, all eligible members of the DEA are required to deposit unused accumulated sick days (as per the approved rate) into an employee account in an Internal Revenue Service (IRS) approved 403(b) Plan. The employee will then determine how the money is to be distributed.
 - It is a requirement of the plan that all eligible members of the DEA participate in the plan.
- 2. Plan Administrator: The plan will be processed through a third party administrator via a "Special Pay Plan" (403(b) Plan) approved by the IRS.
- 3. Vacation Day Payout: Upon retirement, all 12 month employees are required to deposit all unused vacation days into the Special Pay Plan (403(b) Plan).
- 4. Accumulated Unused Sick Days: For members of the DEA who have fifteen (15) or more years in the district, the Deptford Township Board of Education is required to deposit accumulated unused sick days into the Special Pay Plan (403(b) Plan) at the following per diem rates:

Teachers	\$90.00
Clerical	\$70.00
C/M/G & Vehicle Mechanics	\$50.00
Bus Drivers and Bus Aides	\$50.00
Cafeteria	\$50.00
Full Time Paraprofessionals	\$50.00

G. Notice of Retirement:

- 1. Teachers: Notice of retirement of a teacher shall be given by June 1st for a mid-school year retirement and by November 1st for a June retirement. Failure of a teacher to notify the Board of his/her retirement by the aforesaid dates will delay payment to him/her until the month of July following the July in which he/she otherwise would have received payment.
- 2. Support Staff: Notice shall be given by the employee to the Board by November 1st in the school year in which he/she is retiring. Payment shall be made in the month of July following retirement. Failure of an employee to notify the Board of his/her retirement by November 1st aforesaid will delay payment to him/her until the month of July following the July in which he/she otherwise would have received payment.

ARTICLE XII - PERSONAL LEAVE

- A. The Board of Education shall grant, upon recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools, leave per school year (not to be accumulated) to any regularly employed person for the following emergencies or conditions:
 - 1. Bereavement Leave
 - a. Up to five (5) days for: mother, father, mother-in-law, father-in-law, children, grandchildren, husband, wife, Civil Union Partner, brother, sister, or any relative who has lived within the same household for a period of over two (2) years. This leave includes time for stillbirth and miscarriage of an employee's child. Additional emergencies will be judged, upon a request, by the Superintendent of Schools.
 - b. Up to two (2) consecutive days bereavement leave for the death of a grandparent, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece, or nephew.

2. Personal Leave

- a. All work groups: Up to three (3) days (personal business personal business that cannot be conducted outside the normal work day.) For paraprofessionals, this applies to full-time employees only. Part-time paraprofessionals will remain at two (2) days.
- b. Employees shall not be granted personal leave days on a day immediately before or after a holiday, vacation period or during the first or last week of the school year.
- c. Unused personal leave for all work groups shall be accumulated as sick leave.
- d. The Superintendent of Schools may grant additional personal leave without pay.
- 3. Parental Leave One (1) day birth of a child- except service aides.
 - This leave is not intended to supplement leave that has already been granted for the birth of a child (e.g., pregnancy-disability or maternity leave).
- 4. Visitation Leave One (1) day per year may be granted by the Superintendent of Schools to any personnel for school visitation and observation in other school systems. In each case a written report shall be submitted to the principal who will forward it to the Superintendent. Arrangements for such visitations shall be made by the building principal, with the approval of the Superintendent.
- 5. Any work-related court appearance shall be paid by the Board. Written verification and documentation must be presented by the employee and approved by the Superintendent in order to receive payment.
- B. In the event all sick leave days have been used, five (5) days herein specified in A. 2, 3, and 4 may be granted as sick leave days not to be accumulated.

ARTICLE XIII - MATERNITY LEAVE

- A. All employees mentioned in the recognition of this contract shall be eligible for any and all benefits related to child bearing (disability leave) and childrearing leaves as prescribed by Federal and State laws as well as those benefits described in the contract herein.
- B. Those employees meeting the eligibility requirements of leaves covered under the Federal Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and New Jersey Family Leave Act (NJFLA) shall receive those benefits in accordance with the above mentioned laws.
- C. The use of accumulated sick days during maternity leave will be allowed in accordance with state statute (N.J.S.A. 18A:30-1 et seq.). Employees without accumulated sick days will be granted unpaid leaves according to the following terms:
 - 1. Tenured employees shall have the right to request and receive an unpaid leave of absence with the return to work being only the first teacher work day in September. The leave may be for the remainder of the year in which the leave is requested and up to one additional year.
 - 2. Non-tenured employees shall have the right to request an unpaid leave of absence for the remainder of the school year in which the leave is requested and such leave shall not extend beyond the end of the employees contract for the school year in which the leave is granted (time spent on maternity leave shall not count toward fulfillment of the time requirements for acquiring tenure.)
- D. Request for maternity leave shall be made by all employees before the end of the fourth (4th) month of pregnancy. Leave shall begin as recommended by the employee's personal physician. An employee may return to work after the birth of a child upon presentation of a medical certificate from the employee's personal physician stating that she is capable of performing her duties. If an employee decides not to return, she shall notify the Superintendent by giving notice of resignation at least ninety (90) days before the leave expires on June 30th.
- E. Employees granted maternity leave beyond the provisions of applicable Federal and State laws shall, upon request, be reassigned to the position held at the time the leave was granted whenever possible.
- F. In the case of an employee adopting a child, childrearing leave shall commence upon receiving de facto custody of said child, or earlier if necessary to fulfill the requirements for the adoption.
- G. If any provisions of this article are contrary to law, such provisions shall not be deemed valid except to the extent permitted by law.

ARTICLE XIV - VACATIONS - 12 MONTH EMPLOYEES

- A. The purpose is to make it possible for employees of the school system to be relieved of responsibilities for a period of time each year without loss of compensation.
- B. Persons employed between July 1 and September 1 of a given year, will be granted two weeks of paid vacation after June 30 of the following year.
- C. Persons employed between September 2 and February 1 will be granted one week of paid vacation after-June 30 of the following year.
- D. Persons employed in:

February will receive 4 days of paid vacation after June 30 of the following year.

March will receive 3 days of paid vacation after June 30 of the following year.

April will receive 2 days of paid vacation after June 30 of the following year.

May will receive 1 day of paid vacation after June 30 of the following year.

- E. Persons who have completed from five to nine years of continuous service to the district will be granted three weeks of paid vacation per year.
- F. Persons who have completed ten (10) or more years of continuous service to the district will be granted four weeks of paid vacation per year.

G. Clerical

- 1. A year of service credit will be granted for each twelve (12) months of contracted service rendered beginning on or before September 1 and ending June 10.
- 2. A full year of service will be granted for every ten (10) months of service to the district when the employee is reassigned to a twelve (12) month position. (This applies to persons who begin employment in the district on a ten month contract but are later employed for a twelve month contract.)
- 3. Vacation time accrued to the date of termination of employment will be determined by years of service, and prorated according to the length of time employed on the current contract year. (Example: If a person who is eligible for two weeks vacation annually elects to terminate employment after six months of a contract year, he/she will be granted a one week vacation prior to termination of services.)
- 4. Vacations will be granted only at times of the year when they will not interfere with the normal operation of the school.
- 5. The Board may, from time to time, have employees provide advance information concerning the tentative time of taking vacations. Subject to this and paragraph 4 above, requests for vacation must be submitted to the employee's immediate supervisor at least two (2) weeks in advance.
- 6. A maximum of one (1) week of vacation may be carried into the following year upon written request.
- 7. Vacation requests from September 1 to June 15 will be normally limited to one (1) week in length. However, under unusual circumstances, additional time may be granted.
- 8. Requests for vacations must be filled in on the appropriate form. A written confirmation will be returned to the employee as soon as a decision can be made.
- 9. All vacations are subject to the final approval of the Superintendent of Schools.

H. Custodial/Maintenance/Vehicle Mechanics

- 1. If an employee's vacation falls in a week in which a holiday recognized by this Agreement falls, the employee shall receive an additional day's vacation pay computed at the straight time rates in lieu thereof, to be determined by the Employer.
- 2. The Employer shall have the right to schedule the number of employees in each classification who shall receive vacations at a particular time. Employees within a particular classification must select their vacations according to seniority, unless mutually agreed to by the Association and the Employer. The vacation period of each qualified employee shall be set with due regard to the desire, seniority, and preference of the employees, consistent with the efficient operation of the Employer's business. Vacations may be scheduled on a year round basis.
- 3. Past practice shall prevail both as to the time of taking vacation and the number of employees entitled to be off on vacation.

ARTICLE XV - TEACHER PRE-RIF CONFERENCE

- A. Subject to N.J.SA. 18A:28-9, the Superintendent shall notify the Association of any pending reduction in force within a reasonable time prior to such action and shall meet to discuss the situation.
- B. The Board's determination shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE XVI - INSURANCE PROTECTION

A. The Board of Education shall adopt a health insurance plan providing the following:

1. Medical and prescription

Plan options: AmeriHealth PPO including National Vision Administrators (NVA), AmeriHealth PPO Blue Select, AmeriHealth POS, and the New Jersey Educators Health Plan (NJEHP). Effective July 1, 2028, employees who were previously limited to enrollment in the NJEHP will have the option of enrollment in any plan.

Effective July 1, 2013, AmeriHealth PPO shall be the base plan provided at Board cost. Office visit co-pays will be \$10.00.

AmeriHealth PPO prescription plan shall be ten (10) dollars co-pay for generic drugs, twenty (20) dollars co-pay for preferred brand, and thirty (30) dollars co-pay for non-preferred brand drugs. Employees can obtain a 90-day supply for one (1) copay by using the mail order option.

Any employees electing to remain in the Blue Select Plan shall pay the difference in the premium costs between the AmeriHealth Blue Select Plan and the AmeriHealth PPO Plan by payroll deduction.

2. Dental

Plan options: Delta Dental PPO Premier Advantage and Delta Dental DMO Delta Care.

Effective July 1, 2013, Delta Dental PPO Premier Advantage shall be the base plan provided at Board cost. The annual maximum benefit will be \$1,500. Services provided by participating dentists beyond the \$1,500 maximum will be at the Delta negotiated rate.

The Board shall also offer a dental buy-up plan and enrollment in this plan shall be optional. This buy-up, the Premier Buy Up Plan, shall be a buy-up from the Delta Dental PPO Premier Advantage Plan, with the member paying full cost for the Premier Buy Up Plan. The Premier Buy Up: (1) shall increase the annual maximum from \$1,500 to \$2,000, (2) shall increase major services covered (such as crowns and bridges) from 60% to 70%, and (3) shall include implants under the category of "Major Services."

B. Coverage - Medical and Prescription

Effective 9/1/13, the Board reserves the right to not offer benefits to any newly hired employee working less than 30 hours per week in their primary position. The existing practice of the parties for those receiving benefits prior to 9/1/13 will continue in effect regardless of the number of hours worked per week.

1. Teachers

The Board will offer individual and family coverage.

2. Clerical

The Board will offer individual and family coverage.

3. Bus Drivers

Employees hired on or before June 30, 1994 shall be eligible for medical insurance up to family coverage. Employees hired after July 1, 1994 shall be eligible for medical insurance for single coverage only.

4. Cafeteria Workers

Any employee hired on or after July 1, 1984, for a permanent position of more than twenty (20) hours per week shall be eligible for insurance coverage under this Agreement. Employees working

with less than twenty (20) hours per week are ineligible for health coverage. The Board will pay for individual and family coverage.

Effective July 1, 1993, all newly hired employees working twenty (20) or more hours per week shall be eligible to receive individual health coverage on the day after the first anniversary date of employment. The Board will pay for individual coverage.

All employees hired on or after July 1, 2002, shall be ineligible for health care coverage, but may purchase, at their own expense, single coverage in the AmeriHealth PPO Plan provided there are at least six (6) employees that enroll.

Employees who are currently receiving individual health coverage may, at their own expense, purchase family coverage. The employee will pay to the Board of Education the difference between the family coverage rate and the individual rate.

5. Custodial/Maintenance/Vehicle Mechanics

The Board will offer individual and family coverage.

C. Coverage - Dental

1. Teachers

A dental plan providing single coverage for the employee shall be put into effect. The Board shall pay up to, but not in excess of, the sum of \$535 per year per employee effective July 1, 2009 for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.

Employees may purchase dependent coverage at their own expense.

2. Clerical

A dental plan providing single coverage for the employee shall be put into effect. The Board shall pay up to, but not in excess of, the sum of \$535 per year per employee effective July 1, 2009 for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.

Employees may purchase dependent coverage at their own expense.

3. Bus Drivers

Dental plan for employees only - Effective July 1, 1997, the Board of Education shall contribute a sum not in excess of \$ 175.00 per employee per year. Enrollment shall be optional.

4. Custodial/Maintenance/Vehicle Mechanic

The dental plan providing single coverage for the employee shall be put into effect. The Board shall pay up to, but not in excess of, the sum of \$535 per year effective July 1, 2009 for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.

Employees may purchase dental dependent coverage at their own expense.

D. The Board shall not be obligated to pay premiums for any employee during the time the employee is on an unpaid leave of absence except as may be required by the Federal Medical Leave Act and the New Jersey Family Leave Law. However, where not so required, the employee may elect to maintain his/her coverage in effect at his/her own expense during the course of the unpaid leave of absence by making arrangements for reimbursement of premiums paid by the Board.

1. Bus Drivers:

An employee on an unpaid leave of absence in excess of thirty (30) calendar days may continue to have coverage through the Board's medical insurance plan at the employee's own expense. In the event that the thirty (30) day period ends after the monthly premium payment date, the Board and the employee shall pay the monthly premium on a pro rata basis. Thereafter, the employee shall pay the monthly cost until the month he/she returns to work, at which time the Board and the employee shall pay the months cost on a pro rata basis.

NOTE: The Board shall continue to pay for the medical coverage during the summer break in cases where the unpaid leave of absence has not commenced prior to the end of the school year.

2. Custodial/Maintenance/Vehicle Mechanics

An employee on an unpaid leave of absence in excess of thirty (30) calendar days may continue to have coverage through the Board's medical insurance plan at the employee's own expense. In the event that the thirty (30) day period ends after the monthly premium payment date, the Board and the employee shall pay the monthly premium on a pro rata basis. Thereafter, the employee shall pay the monthly cost until the month he/she returns to work, at which time the Board and the employee shall pay the months cost on a pro rata basis.

- E. Enrollment shall be optional.
- F. All insurance coverage is by the approved Board/Association vendor.
- G. Starting July 1, 2022, Teacher unit members in the AmeriHealth Legacy Plans (not the NJEHP or the GSHP) shall contribute a percentage of their total cost of healthcare premiums as follows:

 Starting July 1, 2022:
 20%

 Starting July 1, 2023:
 20%

 Starting July 1, 2024:
 19%

 Starting July 1, 2025:
 19%

 Starting July 1, 2026:
 19%

H. Waiver

There shall be a voluntary health insurance waiver plan for employees. The waiver shall be considered on a year-to-year basis and be instituted only if the Board determines that it will generate an overall cost savings to the district, at the Board's sole discretion. Employees must apply for the waiver each year during the open enrollment period.

Employees who elect to waive coverage shall receive the following reimbursement:

2 Adult / Parent Child(ren) \$4,000 Family \$5,000

The waiver shall be paid in equal installments throughout the year according to the regular pay schedule.

In order to protect all employees' insurance benefits from federal taxation because of agreement to this waiver plan, the Board shall file the necessary Section 125 paperwork and shall pay all administrative costs.

Employees who are not employed during the full year and choose the waiver shall have their payments prorated accordingly. Employees who choose the waiver and are on an unpaid leave of absence without medical benefits shall have their payments prorated as well.

ARTICLE XVII - EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS

A. Teachers

- 1. The Board agrees to pay \$1,800 per year toward tuition and other expenses, excluding travel, incurred in connection with graduate course work in the field of education taken at a recognized college or university, prior approval of the Superintendent of Schools being required. Exceptions may be granted by the Superintendent for employees working toward additional certification.
- 2. Requests for reimbursement must be submitted on or before August 31st for approved work taken in the preceding school year and summer to be eligible for guide movement on September 1, and on or before December 31st to be eligible for guide movement on January 1. Said request must include appropriate supporting documents as required by the Board's form.

B. Clerical

1. The Board agrees to pay \$600 per year toward tuition and other expenses incurred in connection with course work taken in a recognized program with prior approval of the Superintendent of Schools. Verification of expenses and for tuition shall be submitted for payment upon proof of successful completion of the course.

C. Bus Drivers

- 1. The Board agrees to pay \$150 per year toward tuition and other expenses incurred in connection with course work taken in a recognized program with prior approval of the Superintendent of Schools.
- 2. Verification of expenses and tuition shall be submitted with a voucher for payment.

D. Cafeteria

- 1. The Board agrees to pay \$150 per year toward tuition and other expenses incurred in connection with course work taken in a recognized program with prior approval of the Superintendent of Schools.
- 2. Verification of tuition expenses shall be submitted with a voucher for payment.

E. Custodial/Maintenance/Vehicle Mechanics

- 1. The Board agrees to pay \$150 per year toward tuition and other expenses incurred in connection with course work taken in a recognized program with prior approval of the Superintendent of Schools. This refers to tuition only, registration fees and books.
- 2. Verification of tuition expenses shall be submitted with a voucher for payment.
- F. Reimbursement provided for in this Article XVII is subject to compliance with N.J.S.A. 18A:6-8.5. Further, an employee who terminates employment with the school district within two (2) calendar years of receiving reimbursement shall pay back the district for all such reimbursement received within the two (2) calendar years preceding termination of employment.

ARTICLE XVIII - DEDUCTIONS FROM SALARY

A. Association Payroll Dues Deduction

- 1. The Board agrees to deduct from the salaries of its employees dues for the Deptford Education Association, the New Jersey Education or the National Education Association or any one or any combination of such Associations as said employees individually and voluntarily authorize the Board to deduct. Such deductions shall be made in compliance with Chapter 233 N. J. Public Laws of 1969 (N.J.S.A. 52:14-15.9e) and under rules established by the State Department of Education. Said monies, together with current records of any person as may from time to time be designated by the Deptford Education Association, shall be forwarded to the Association by the 15th of each month following the monthly pay period in which deductions were made. The person designated shall disburse such monies to the appropriate association or associations.
- 2. Each of the Associations named above shall certify to the Board, in writing, the current rate of its membership dues. Any Association which shall change the rate of its membership dues shall give the Board written notice prior to the effective date of such change.

B. Local, State and National Services

The Board agrees to deduct from employees' salaries money for local, state and/or national association services and programs as said employees individually and voluntarily authorize the Board to deduct and to transmit the monies promptly to such Association or Associations. Any employee may have such deductions discontinued at any time upon sixty (60) days' written notice to the Board and the appropriate Association.

C. Tax Shelter Annuity: A tax shelter annuity is offered for all employees to participate in by payroll deduction.

ARTICLE XIX - UNIFORMS

The following employees will receive a clothing/footwear pre-paid card each year as follows:

Cafeteria	\$125
Maintenance	\$300
Grounds	\$400
Vehicle Mechanics	\$350

Cafeteria and custodial/maintenance employees are responsible for their own laundering and care of the clothing. It will be required that the school-supplied-clothing be worn every workday.

Custodians will be supplied with one golf shirt each year at Board expense.

The Board agrees to allow vehicle mechanics to utilize laundry facilities for their uniforms on site.

<u>ARTICLE XX - GAS MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT</u>

Reimbursement for gas mileage shall be at the rate established by the New Jersey State Department of Treasury as long as the current Department of Education regulations are in effect.

ARTICLE XXI - MILITARY/JURY DUTY

- A. New Jersey Statutes must prevail.
- B. Custodial/Maintenance/Grounds/Vehicle Mechanics
 - In the event any employee covered by this Agreement is required to serve jury duty, the employer agrees to supplement his jury duty compensation with an amount sufficient to equal his regular forty (40) hour weekly earnings at the straight time rate for his job classification.
- C. Employees who are required to attend jury duty immediately preceding or following his/her work shift wholly within the same day shall be excused from the scheduled work shift without loss of pay.

ARTICLE XXII - PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES

- A. An employee may use reasonable force, as is necessary, to protect himself/herself from attack, to protect another person or property, to quell a disturbance threatening physical injury to others, or to gain possession of weapons or other dangerous objects within control of a pupil.
- B. In addition to the rights provided in 18A:16:6, whenever any action is brought against an employee before the Board, the Commissioner of Education of the State of New Jersey, or any agency thereof which may affect his/her employment or salary status, the Board shall reimburse said employee for the cost of his/her defense if the action is dismissed or results in a final decision in favor of the employee.
- C. The Board shall give full support including legal and other assistance for any assault upon the employee arising from the discharge of his/her duties.
- D. When absence arises out of or from such assault and injury, an employee shall not forfeit any sick leave or personal leave.
- E. Benefits derived under this or subsequent Agreements shall continue beyond the period of any worker's compensation until the complete recovery of any employee.
- F. Employees shall immediately report cases of assault suffered by them in connection with their employment to their principal or other immediate supervisor.
- G. Such notification shall be immediately forwarded to the Superintendent who shall comply with any reasonable request, unless protected under legal statue, from the employee for information in the possession of the Superintendent relating to the incident or the persons involved, and shall act in appropriate ways as liaison between the employee, the police, and the courts.
- H. If criminal or civil proceedings are brought against an employee alleging that he/she committed an assault in connection with his/her employment, the Board shall pay for legal counsel to defend him/her in such proceeding in addition to the rights that refer to 18A: 16-6.1.
- I. The Board shall fully comply with all aspects of applicable Workers Compensation laws.
 - 1. Any employee sustaining injuries which are compensable under the Workers' Compensation Act but which do not prevent him from performing his usual duties, but require that he visit the offices of Employer designated physicians for the purpose of obtaining further treatment after work hours whenever possible, shall suffer no loss of wages because of such visits.
 - 2. Any employee sustaining injuries which are compensable under the Workers' Compensation Act which prevent him from performing all work available to him, at Employer's place, shall sustain no loss of pay for the balance of the day on which he was injured.
 - 3. Ability to perform work shall be determined by doctor and/or hospital report.
- J. If an employee is out of work due to an occupational accident/disease for less than seven (7) days, the board shall pay the employee's salary without charging the time to sick leave.
 - 1. The Board reserves the right to delay payment pending investigation and required medical examinations.
 - 2. The employee shall fully cooperate in processing of the claim through workers' compensation.

ARTICLE XXIII - HEALTH & SAFETY / FACILITIES & EQUIPMENT

A. Under no circumstances will an employee be required or assigned to engage in any activity involving dangerous conditions of work, or danger to person or property, or in violation of any applicable statute or court order, or in violation of a government regulation relating to safety of person, or equipment, as determined by the employer. The term "dangerous condition of work" does not relate to the type of material which is hauled or handled. The employer shall supply protective clothing if required to handle any dangerous material. The Employer further agrees to cooperate to the fullest extent possible in all safety campaigns or projects in which the Association may see fit to participate.

The Employer shall provide suitable sanitary conditions for employees.

Employees shall immediately, or at the end of their shifts, report all defects in equipment. Such reports shall be made on a suitable form furnished by the Employer and shall be made in multiple copies, one (1) copy to be retained by the employee. The Employer shall not ask or require any employee to operate any equipment that has been reported in an unsafe operating condition until same has been approved as being safe by management or the mechanical department.

When the occasion arises where an employee gives written report of forms in use by the Employer, on any equipment being in unsafe operating condition, and receives no consideration from the Employer, he shall take the matter up with the Association.

- B. A Joint Health & Safety Committee shall be established and consist of three (3) members appointed by the Association President and three (3) members appointed by the Superintendent. The Committee shall meet at least three (3) times each year. Training for the Committee shall be jointly developed and the Board shall pay all costs, upon Board approval.
- C. Any employee involved in an accident shall at first opportunity report said accident to his Employer prior to sign off time. If said accident involves any physical injuries, then the employee shall immediately report said accident to his Employer as soon as possible.
- D. The Board of Education shall endeavor to insure safe working conditions. In the event of disorder or disruption in the regular school program, representatives of the Association shall have the right to meet with the school administrators.
- E. The Board shall reimburse employees for the reasonable cost of any clothing or personal property damaged or destroyed as a result of student assault while the employee was acting in discharge of duties within the scope of his/her employment.

ARTICLE XXIV - AGENCY FEE

A. PURPOSE OF THE FEE

If any employee does not become a member of the Association during any membership year which is covered in whole or in part this agreement, said employee will be required to pay a representation fee to the Association for that membership year. The purpose of this fee will be to offset the employee's per capita cost of services rendered by the Association as majority representative.

The representation fee to be paid by nonmembers/fee-payers will be pursuant to the determination of an impartial arbitrator in accordance with the law.

B. DETERMINATION OF FEE

Prior to the beginning of each membership year (September 1 through August 31), the Association will notify the Board in writing of the amount of the regular membership dues, initiation fees, and assessments charged by the Association to its own members for the academic year. The representation fee to be paid by non-members will be determined by the Association in accordance with the law.

C. DEDUCTION AND TRANSMISSION OF FEE

- 1. <u>Notification Once</u> during each membership year, but no later than October 1 of the year, the Association will submit to the Board a list of those employees who have not become members of the Association for the then current year. The Board will deduct from the salaries of such employees, in accordance with paragraph 2 below.
- 2. <u>Payroll Deduction Schedule</u> The Board will deduct the full amount of the yearly representation fee in equal installments from the paychecks paid to each employee on the aforesaid list during the February through June period.
- 3. <u>Termination of Employment If an employee terminates his or her employment with the Board before the Association has received the prorated amount of the representation fee to which it is entitled under this Article, the Board will deduct the unpaid portion of the prorated fee from the last paycheck paid to said employee during the academic year in question.</u>
- 4. <u>Mechanics</u> The mechanics for the deduction of representation fees and the transmission of such fees to the Association will, as nearly as possible, be the same as those used for the deduction and transmission of regular membership dues to the Association.
- 5. New Employees Each month in which the Board hires a new unit member(s), the Board will notify the Association in writing of the name(s), job title(s) and date(s) of employment of the new employee(s).
- D. The Association shall indemnify, defend and save harmless the Board against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability that shall arise out of fee deductions by the Board for the Association which the Board has remitted to the Association and reliance by the Board on any representations made by the Association with respect to this Article. The Association shall assume full responsibility for the defense of any such claim, demand, suit or other form of liability and the Board will cooperate fully with the Association in gathering evidence, securing witnesses, and in other aspects of said defense. The Board will give to the Association notice in writing of any claim, demand, suit or other form of liability in regard to which it will seek to implement this paragraph.

<u>ARTICLE XXV - MISCELLANEOUS</u>

- A. If any provisions of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement to any employee or group of employees is held to be contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting, except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.
- B. Any individual contract between the Board and an individual employee, heretofore or hereafter executed shall be subject to and consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. If an individual contract contains any language inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement, during its duration, shall be controlled.
- C. There shall be no discrimination in practices and procedures of the school system policies in hiring, training, assignments, promotions, transfer or discipline of employees on basis of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, domicile, marital status, sexual orientation, disability or any Association activities.
- D. Any employee or employee group shall communicate through the proper channels of authority. When the matter requires Board action it shall be directed through proper channels to the Board of Education.
- E. It is agreed by both parties that the negotiations will be conducted without the use of pressure tactics. The parties also agree, during the period of negotiations, that the only publicity accorded the negotiations by the parties will consist of a joint press release or, in the event the parties are unable to agree upon wording, a joint press release stating that "no progress has been made".
- F. It is understood by all parties that under the ruling of the Courts of New Jersey and the State Commissioner of Education, the Board of Education is forbidden to waive any rights or powers granted it by law.
- G. The parties agree to follow the procedures outlined in the Agreement, and to use no other channels to resolve any question or proposal until the procedures within this Agreement are fully exhausted.
- H. If the legislature or courts of New Jersey authorize strikes by public employees, there shall be no strikes or other concerted activities during the term of the Agreement.
- I. Whenever any notice is required to be given by either party of this Agreement to the other, pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, either party shall do so in writing with signed receipt of delivery, at the following addresses:
 - 1. If by the Association to the Board: 2022 Good Intent Road Deptford, NJ 08096
 - 2. If by the Board to the Association: The school building where the President of the Association is assigned.

ARTICLE XXVI - AGREEMENT

It is agreed between the Board of Education of Deptford Township in the County of Gloucester, party of the first part, and the Deptford Education Association, party of the second part, that the contents of this Agreement shall be effective from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2027.

Resolution of adoption by the Board of Education at the regular meeting of July 12, 2022, IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals.

DEPTFORD TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION:	
Joe McKenna, President	9/1/22 Date
Attested by: Todd Reitzel, School Business Administrator/ Board Secreta	Date Date
DEPTFORD EDUCATION ASSOCIATION:	
Mike Vilary, DEA President	9/1/22 Date
Attested by: Graham Hall, DEA Negotiations Chair	9-1-2022 Date

EXHIBIT A - FIELD TRIPS

- A. Trips will be assigned by seniority and by the number of trips a driver has previously completed.
- B. Any regular driver can sign up for a field trip. The weeks when there is a school closing, all regular drivers' can sign up for trips at straight time.
- C. Drivers must sign a trip card to indicate they want the posted trip. Any driver not signing a posted trip card indicates he/she does not want said trip.
- D. Field trips scheduled for Saturdays, Sundays, holidays and weekdays, when a regular contract driver's regularly scheduled assigned runs are not scheduled because school is not in session, shall be exclusively assigned to a regular contract driver unless there are no contract drivers available for said trip. In the event no regular contract driver is available and/or eligible for assignment, as determined by the Transportation Supervisor, the supervisor may then assign said trip to a substitute bus driver or other non-contract driver.
- E. In the absence of an emergency, when a bus driver is required for assignment for a non-scheduled field trip, non-posted field trip or other late notice situation, the supervisor shall first make a reasonably thorough effort to contact and make available said trip to the most senior regular contract driver available and eligible, according to the rules of seniority and number of trips completed, before assigning said trip to a less senior or substitute driver.
- F. If a driver has been assigned a trip and is unable to report for said trip, the next eligible driver according to seniority and trips completed who signed a card for said trip shall be assigned the trip. If no other eligible drivers' names appear on said trip card, the supervisor shall pick and assign a driver.
- G. When a driver who is scheduled to work a weekend trip is unable to do so, he/she must contact their supervisor. If the cancellation is within 48 hours of the assigned trip, the supervisor may use their discretion to staff the run.
- H. Field trips, athletic trips and band trips shall be posted five (5) days in advance of activity date, subject to change in time and destination. Emergency trips shall be posted in advance on day of approval by the Superintendent's Office.
- I. In the event a trip is cancelled and the same trip is run within two (2) working days, the same assigned driver for said trip will also be assigned trip. If cancellation is more than two (2) working days, trip will be posted again.
- J. A graph type chart with all regular drivers' names listed in order of seniority and showing all current charges for field trips completed shall be posted in an appropriate location visible to all drivers. The Transportation Supervisor will have the primary responsibility for maintaining and accurately updating said chart as necessary. However, each driver has the responsibility to bring any discrepancies to the supervisor's attention. Failure to do so in a timely manner will make the driver ineligible for pay consideration.
- K. All posted trips are to be assigned at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance.
- L. Subject to the provisions of Paragraph J. any driver who was denied a trip when it was his/her rightful turn will be paid for such trip. Less than two (2) hours is not classified as a trip for any purpose.
- M. Any driver who reports for an assigned trip that has been cancelled without notification shall be guaranteed two (2) hours pay.
- N. Substitute drivers may sign posted field/athletic trip sheets. However, they are not eligible for and cannot be assigned trips unless the aforementioned conditions of Paragraph D of this exhibit are in existence.
- O. In the event that a lesser number of buses than was required and shown on posted trip card are assigned for said trip, the next eligible driver who signed up for said trip shall be paid an equal number of hours as was required to complete said trip.

EXHIBIT B - EXTRA WORK

- A. Extra work, when available shall be assigned to regular contract drivers who have signed the posted extra work sheet at least one (1) day prior to day of availability. Regular drivers reporting to work on any given day and electing to sign extra work sheet for same day may do so. However, the supervisor may or may not assign those drivers extra work, depending on work available and/or supervisor's extra work needs for that day.
- B. Extra work shall be assigned according to the rules of seniority and the number of previous extra work assignments completed.
- C. In the event a regular driver who elected to sign the posted extra work sheet the day before is unable to report for duty on the day signed for because of sickness, said driver will not be penalized and charged for an extra work assignment.
- D. In the event no regular contract driver has signed the posted extra work sheet and no regular drivers are immediately available, the Transportation Supervisor may then assign the extra work to a substitute driver who is then immediately available.

EXHIBIT 1 - CERTIFICATED STAFF SALARY GUIDE

2022-2023

Step	ВА	BA+15	BA+30	MA	MA+15	MA+30	Doc
1	\$60,948	\$61,748	\$62,548	\$63,448	\$64,248	\$64,948	\$65,948
2	\$61,448	\$62,248	\$63,048	\$63,948	\$64,748	\$65,448	\$66,448
3	\$61,948	\$62,748	\$63,548	\$64,448	\$65,248	\$65,948	\$66,948
4	\$62,448	\$63,248	\$64,048	\$64,948	\$65,748	\$66,448	\$67,448
5	\$62,948	\$63,748	\$64,548	\$65,448	\$66,248	\$66,948	\$67,948
6	\$63,698	\$64,498	\$65,298	\$66,198	\$66,998	\$67,698	\$68,698
7	\$64,448	\$65,248	\$66,048	\$66,948	\$67,748	\$68,448	\$69,448
8	\$65,448	\$66,248	\$67,048	\$67,948	\$68,748	\$69,448	\$70,448
9	\$67,641	\$68,441	\$69,241	\$70,141	\$70,941	\$71,641	\$72,641
10	\$70,941	\$71,741	\$72,541	\$73,441	\$74,241	\$74,941	\$75,941
11	\$74,341	\$75,141	\$75,941	\$76,841	\$77,641	\$78,341	\$79,341
12	\$77,941	\$78,741	\$79,541	\$80,441	\$81,241	\$81,941	\$82,941
13	\$81,641	\$82,441	\$83,241	\$84,141	\$84,941	\$85,641	\$86,641
14	\$86,391	\$87,191	\$87,991	\$88,891	\$89,691	\$90,391	\$91,391
15	\$91,824	\$92,624	\$93,424	\$94,324	\$95,124	\$95,824	\$96,824
			2023-20	024			
Step	ВА	BA+15	BA+30	MA	MA+15	MA+30	Doc
1	\$62,752	\$63,552	\$64,352	\$65,252	\$66,052	\$66,752	\$67,752
2	\$63,252	\$64,052	\$64,852	\$65,752	\$66,552	\$67,252	\$68,252
3	\$63,752	\$64,552	\$65,352	\$66,252	\$67,052	\$67,752	\$68,752
4	\$64,252	\$65,052	\$65,852	\$66,752	\$67,552	\$68,252	\$69,252
5	\$64,752	\$65,552	\$66,352	\$67,252	\$68,052	\$68,752	\$69,752
6	\$65,502	\$66,302	\$67,102	\$68,002	\$68,802	\$69,502	\$70,502
7	\$66,252	\$67,052	\$67,852	\$68,752	\$69,552	\$70,252	\$71,252
8	\$67,252	\$68,052	\$68,852	\$69,752	\$70,552	\$71,252	\$72,252
9	\$69,445	\$70,245	\$71,045	\$71,945	\$72,745	\$73,445	\$74,445
10	\$72,745	\$73,545	\$74,345	\$75,245	\$76,045	\$76,745	\$77,745
11	\$76,145	\$76,945	\$77,745	\$78,645	\$79,445	\$80,145	\$81,145
12	\$79,745	\$80,545	\$81,345	\$82,245	\$83,045	\$83,745	\$84,745
13	\$83,445	\$84,245	\$85,045	\$85,945	\$86,745	\$87,445	\$88,445
14				AAA AAE	MA4 4AE	ሞለብ ፈብሮ	0'0'2 40E
15	\$88,195 \$93,628	\$88,995 \$94,428	\$89,795 \$95,228	\$90,695 \$96,128	\$91,495 \$96,928	\$92,195 \$97,628	\$93,195 \$\$98,628

EXHIBIT 1 - CERTIFICATED STAFF SALARY GUIDE (cont.)

<u>2024-2025</u>

Step	ВА	BA+15	BA+30	MA	MA+15	MA+30	Doc
1	\$64,700	\$65,500	\$66,300	\$67,200	\$68,000	\$68,700	\$69,700
2	\$65,200	\$66,000	\$66,800	\$67,700	\$68,500	\$69,200	\$70,200
3	\$65,700	\$66,500	\$67,300	\$68,200	\$69,000	\$69,700	\$70,700
4	\$66,200	\$67,000	\$67,800	\$68,700	\$69,500	\$70,200	\$71,200
5	\$66,700	\$67,500	\$68,300	\$69,200	\$70,000	\$70,700	\$71,700
6	\$67,450	\$68,250	\$69,050	\$69,950	\$70,750	\$71,450	\$72,450
7	\$68,200	\$69,000	\$69,800	\$70,700	\$71,500	\$72,200	\$73,200
8	\$69,200	\$70,000	\$70,800	\$71,700	\$72,500	\$73,200	\$74,200
9	\$71,393	\$72,193	\$72,993	\$73,893	\$74,693	\$75,393	\$76,393
10	\$74,693	\$75,493	\$76,293	\$77,193	\$77,993	\$78,693	\$79,693
11	\$78,093	\$78,893	\$79,693	\$80,593	\$81,393	\$82,093	\$83,093
12	\$81,693	\$82,493	\$83,293	\$84,193	\$84,993	\$85,693	\$86,693
13	\$85,393	\$86,193	\$86,993	\$87,893	\$88,693	\$89,393	\$90,393
14	\$90,143	\$90,943	\$91,743	\$92,643	\$93,443	\$94,143	\$95,143
15	\$95,576	\$96,376	\$97,176	\$98,076	\$98,876	\$99,576	\$100,576
			2025-20	<u>)26</u>			
Step	ВА	BA+15	BA+30	MA	MA+15	MA+30	Doc
-					MA+15 \$70,173	MA+30 \$70,873	Doc \$71,873
1	\$66,873	\$67,673	\$68,473	MA \$69,373 \$69,873			
1 2				\$69,373	\$70,173	\$70,873	\$71,873
1	\$66,873 \$67,373	\$67,673 \$68,173	\$68,473 \$68,973	\$69,373 \$69,873	\$70,173 \$70,673	\$70,873 \$71,373	\$71,873 \$72,373
1 2 3	\$66,873 \$67,373 \$67,873	\$67,673 \$68,173 \$68,673	\$68,473 \$68,973 \$69,473	\$69,373 \$69,873 \$70,373	\$70,173 \$70,673 \$71,173	\$70,873 \$71,373 \$71,873	\$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873
1 2 3 4	\$66,873 \$67,373 \$67,873 \$68,373	\$67,673 \$68,173 \$68,673 \$69,173	\$68,473 \$68,973 \$69,473 \$69,973	\$69,373 \$69,873 \$70,373 \$70,873	\$70,173 \$70,673 \$71,173 \$71,673	\$70,873 \$71,373 \$71,873 \$72,373	\$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,373
1 2 3 4 5	\$66,873 \$67,373 \$67,873 \$68,373 \$68,873	\$67,673 \$68,173 \$68,673 \$69,173 \$69,673	\$68,473 \$68,973 \$69,473 \$69,973 \$70,473	\$69,373 \$69,873 \$70,373 \$70,873 \$71,373	\$70,173 \$70,673 \$71,173 \$71,673 \$72,173	\$70,873 \$71,373 \$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873	\$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,373 \$73,873 \$74,623 \$75,373
1 2 3 4 5 6	\$66,873 \$67,373 \$67,873 \$68,373 \$68,873 \$69,623	\$67,673 \$68,173 \$68,673 \$69,173 \$69,673 \$70,423	\$68,473 \$68,973 \$69,473 \$69,973 \$70,473 \$71,223	\$69,373 \$69,873 \$70,373 \$70,873 \$71,373 \$72,123	\$70,173 \$70,673 \$71,173 \$71,673 \$72,173 \$72,923	\$70,873 \$71,373 \$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,623 \$74,373 \$75,373	\$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,373 \$73,873 \$74,623 \$75,373 \$76,373
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	\$66,873 \$67,373 \$67,873 \$68,373 \$68,873 \$69,623 \$70,373	\$67,673 \$68,173 \$68,673 \$69,173 \$69,673 \$70,423 \$71,173	\$68,473 \$68,973 \$69,473 \$69,973 \$70,473 \$71,223 \$71,973	\$69,373 \$69,873 \$70,373 \$70,873 \$71,373 \$72,123 \$72,873	\$70,173 \$70,673 \$71,173 \$71,673 \$72,173 \$72,923 \$73,673 \$74,673 \$76,866	\$70,873 \$71,373 \$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,623 \$74,373 \$75,373 \$77,566	\$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,373 \$73,873 \$74,623 \$75,373 \$76,373 \$76,373
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	\$66,873 \$67,373 \$67,873 \$68,373 \$68,873 \$69,623 \$70,373 \$71,373	\$67,673 \$68,173 \$68,673 \$69,173 \$69,673 \$70,423 \$71,173 \$72,173	\$68,473 \$68,973 \$69,473 \$69,973 \$70,473 \$71,223 \$71,973 \$72,973	\$69,373 \$69,873 \$70,373 \$70,873 \$71,373 \$72,123 \$72,873 \$73,873 \$76,066 \$79,366	\$70,173 \$70,673 \$71,173 \$71,673 \$72,173 \$72,923 \$73,673 \$74,673 \$76,866 \$80,166	\$70,873 \$71,373 \$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,623 \$74,373 \$75,373 \$77,566 \$80,866	\$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,373 \$73,873 \$74,623 \$75,373 \$76,373 \$78,566 \$81,866
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	\$66,873 \$67,373 \$67,873 \$68,373 \$68,873 \$69,623 \$70,373 \$71,373 \$73,566	\$67,673 \$68,173 \$68,673 \$69,173 \$69,673 \$70,423 \$71,173 \$72,173 \$74,366	\$68,473 \$68,973 \$69,473 \$69,973 \$70,473 \$71,223 \$71,973 \$72,973 \$75,166	\$69,373 \$69,873 \$70,373 \$70,873 \$71,373 \$72,123 \$72,873 \$73,873 \$76,066	\$70,173 \$70,673 \$71,173 \$71,673 \$72,173 \$72,923 \$73,673 \$74,673 \$76,866 \$80,166 \$83,566	\$70,873 \$71,373 \$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,623 \$74,373 \$75,373 \$77,566 \$80,866 \$84,266	\$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,373 \$73,873 \$74,623 \$75,373 \$76,373 \$76,373 \$78,566 \$81,866 \$85,266
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	\$66,873 \$67,373 \$67,873 \$68,373 \$68,873 \$69,623 \$70,373 \$71,373 \$73,566 \$76,866	\$67,673 \$68,173 \$68,673 \$69,173 \$69,673 \$70,423 \$71,173 \$72,173 \$74,366 \$77,666 \$81,066 \$84,666	\$68,473 \$68,973 \$69,473 \$69,973 \$70,473 \$71,223 \$71,973 \$72,973 \$75,166 \$78,466 \$81,866 \$85,466	\$69,373 \$69,873 \$70,373 \$70,873 \$71,373 \$72,123 \$72,873 \$73,873 \$76,066 \$79,366 \$82,766 \$86,366	\$70,173 \$70,673 \$71,173 \$71,673 \$72,173 \$72,923 \$73,673 \$74,673 \$76,866 \$80,166 \$83,566 \$87,166	\$70,873 \$71,373 \$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,623 \$74,373 \$75,373 \$77,566 \$80,866 \$84,266 \$87,866	\$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,373 \$73,873 \$74,623 \$75,373 \$76,373 \$76,373 \$78,566 \$81,866 \$85,266 \$85,266
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	\$66,873 \$67,373 \$67,873 \$68,373 \$68,873 \$69,623 \$70,373 \$71,373 \$73,566 \$76,866 \$80,266	\$67,673 \$68,173 \$68,673 \$69,173 \$69,673 \$70,423 \$71,173 \$72,173 \$74,366 \$77,666 \$81,066	\$68,473 \$68,973 \$69,473 \$69,973 \$70,473 \$71,223 \$71,973 \$72,973 \$75,166 \$78,466 \$81,866 \$85,466 \$85,466	\$69,373 \$69,873 \$70,873 \$70,873 \$71,373 \$72,123 \$72,873 \$73,873 \$76,066 \$79,366 \$82,766 \$82,766 \$86,366 \$90,066	\$70,173 \$70,673 \$71,173 \$71,673 \$72,173 \$72,923 \$73,673 \$74,673 \$76,866 \$80,166 \$83,566 \$87,166 \$90,866	\$70,873 \$71,373 \$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,623 \$74,373 \$75,373 \$77,566 \$80,866 \$84,266 \$84,266 \$87,866 \$91,566	\$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,373 \$73,873 \$74,623 \$75,373 \$76,373 \$76,373 \$78,566 \$81,866 \$85,266 \$85,266 \$88,866 \$92,566
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	\$66,873 \$67,373 \$67,873 \$68,373 \$68,873 \$69,623 \$70,373 \$71,373 \$73,566 \$76,866 \$80,266 \$83,866	\$67,673 \$68,173 \$68,673 \$69,173 \$69,673 \$70,423 \$71,173 \$72,173 \$74,366 \$77,666 \$81,066 \$84,666	\$68,473 \$68,973 \$69,473 \$69,973 \$70,473 \$71,223 \$71,973 \$72,973 \$75,166 \$78,466 \$81,866 \$85,466	\$69,373 \$69,873 \$70,373 \$70,873 \$71,373 \$72,123 \$72,873 \$73,873 \$76,066 \$79,366 \$82,766 \$86,366	\$70,173 \$70,673 \$71,173 \$71,673 \$72,173 \$72,923 \$73,673 \$74,673 \$76,866 \$80,166 \$83,566 \$87,166	\$70,873 \$71,373 \$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,623 \$74,373 \$75,373 \$77,566 \$80,866 \$84,266 \$87,866	\$71,873 \$72,373 \$72,873 \$73,373 \$73,873 \$74,623 \$75,373 \$76,373 \$76,373 \$78,566 \$81,866 \$85,266 \$85,266

EXHIBIT 1 - CERTIFICATED STAFF SALARY GUIDE (cont.)

2026-2027

Step	ВА	BA+15	BA+30	MA	MA+15	MA+30	Doc
1	\$68,570	\$69,370	\$70,170	\$71,070	\$71,870	\$72,570	\$73,570
2	\$69,070	\$69,870	\$70,670	\$71,570	\$72,370	\$73,070	\$74,070
3	\$69,570	\$70,370	\$71,170	\$72,070	\$72,870	\$73,570	\$74,570
4	\$70,070	\$70,870	\$71,670	\$72,570	\$73,370	\$74,070	\$75,070
5	\$70,570	\$71,370	\$72,170	\$73,070	\$73,870	\$74,570	\$75,570
6	\$71,320	\$72,120	\$72,920	\$73,820	\$74,620	\$75,320	\$76,320
7	\$72,070	\$72,870	\$73,670	\$74,570	\$75,370	\$76,070	\$77,070
8	\$73,570	\$74,370	\$75,170	\$76,070	\$76,870	\$77,570	\$78,570
9	\$75,770	\$76,570	\$77,370	\$78,270	\$79,070	\$79,770	\$80,770
10	\$79,070	\$79.870	\$80,670	\$81,570	\$82,370	\$83,070	\$84,070
11	\$82,470	\$83,270	\$84,070	\$84,970	\$85,770	\$86,470	\$87,470
12	\$86,070	\$86,870	\$87,670	\$88,570	\$89,370	\$90,070	\$91,070
13	\$89,770	\$90,570	\$91,370	\$92,270	\$93,070	\$93,770	\$94,770
14	\$94,520	\$95,320	\$96,120	\$97,020	\$97,820	\$98,520	\$99,520
15	\$100,000	\$100,800	\$101,600	\$102,500	\$103,300	\$104,000	\$105,000

EXHIBIT 2 - HIGH SCHOOL ATHLETIC SALARIES

Position	22-23	<u>23-24</u>	24-25	<u>25-26</u>	<u> 26-27</u>
Head Football Coach	\$9,688	\$9,882	\$10,079	\$10,281	\$10,487
First Assistant Football Coach	\$5,640	\$5,752	\$5 <i>,</i> 867	\$5,985	\$6,104
Assistant Football Coach (1)	\$5,462	\$5,571	\$5,683	\$5,796	\$5,912
Assistant Football Coach (2)	\$5,462	\$5,571	\$5,683	\$5 <i>,</i> 796	\$5,912
Assistant Football Coach (3)	\$5,462	\$5,571	\$5,683	\$5,796	\$5,912
Assistant Football Coach (4)	\$5,462	\$5,571	\$5,683	\$5,796	\$5,912
Assistant Football Coach (5)	\$5,462	\$5,571	\$5,683	\$5,796	\$5,912
Freshman/Assistant Football Coach	\$5,030	\$5,130	\$5,233	\$5,337	\$5,444
Asst Freshman Football Coach (1)	\$4,286	\$4,372	\$4,459	\$4,548	\$4,639
Head Basketball Coach - Boys	\$7,316	\$7,463	\$7,612	\$7,764	\$7,920
Head Basketball Coach - Girls	\$7,316	\$7,463	\$7,612	\$7,764	\$7,920
First Assistant Basketball Coach - Boys	\$4,154	\$4,238	\$4,322	\$4,409	\$4,497
First Assistant Basketball Coach - Girls	\$4,154	\$4,238	\$4,322	\$4,409	\$4,497
JV Basketball Coach - Boys	\$5,207	\$5,311	\$5,417	\$5,526	\$5,636
JV Basketball Coach - Girls	\$5,207	\$5,311	\$5,417	\$5,526	\$5,636
Freshman/Asst Basketball Coach - Boys	\$4,025	\$4,105	\$4,188	\$4,271	\$4,357
Head Soccer Coach - Boys	\$6,696	\$6,830	\$6,967	\$7,106	\$7,248
Head Soccer Coach - Girls	\$6,696	\$6,830	\$6,967	\$7,106	\$7,248
First Assistant Soccer Coach Boys	\$4,154	\$4,238	\$4,322	\$4,409	\$4,497
First Assistant Soccer Coach Girls	\$4,154	\$4,238	\$4,322	\$4,409	\$4,497
JV Soccer Coach - Boys	\$4,723	\$4,817	\$4,913	\$5,012	\$5,112
JV Soccer Coach - Girls	\$4,723	\$4,817	\$4,913	\$5,012	\$5,112
Freshman/Asst Soccer Coach - Girls	\$3,750	\$3,825	\$3,901	\$3,979	\$4,059
Head Girls Hockey Coach	\$6,696	\$6,830	\$6,967	\$7,106	\$7,248
JV Girls Hockey Coach	\$4,723	\$4,817	\$4,913	\$5,012	\$5,112
Head Wrestling Coach	\$7,316	\$7,463	\$7,612	\$7,764	\$7,920
Wrestling Coach Differential - Girls	\$1,250	\$1,250	\$1,250	\$1,250	\$1,250
First Assistant Wrestling Coach	\$4,154	\$4,238	\$4,322	\$4,409	\$4,497
JV Wrestling Coach	\$5,207	\$5,311	\$5,417	\$5,526	\$5,636
Head Baseball Coach	\$6,696	\$6,830	\$6,967	\$7,106	\$7,248
Head Softball Coach	\$6,696	\$6,830	\$6,967	\$7,106	\$7,248
First Assistant Baseball	\$4,154	\$4,238	\$4,322	\$4,409	\$4,497
First Assistant Softball	\$4,154	\$4,238	\$4,322	\$4,409	\$4,497
JV Baseball Coach	\$4,723	\$4,817	\$4,913	\$5,012	\$5,112
JV Softball Coach	\$4,723	\$4,817	\$4,913	\$5,012	\$5,112
Freshman/Asst - Baseball	\$3,750	\$3,825	\$3,901	\$3,979	\$4,059
Freshman/Asst - Softball Coach	\$3,750	\$3,825	\$3,901	\$3,979	\$4,059

<u>Position</u>	22-23	23-24	<u>24-25</u>	<u>25-26</u>	<u>26-27</u>
Head Track Coach - Boys	\$6,696	\$6,830	\$6,967	\$7,106	\$7,248
Head Track Coach - Girls	\$6,696	\$6,830	\$6,967	\$7,106	\$7,248
Assistant Track Coach Boys	\$4,723	\$4,817	\$4,913	\$5,012	\$5,112
Assistant Track Coach Boys	\$4,723	\$4,817	\$4,913	\$5,012	\$5,112
Assistant Track Coach Girls	\$4,723	\$4,817	\$4,913	\$5,012	\$5,112
Assistant Track Coach Girls	\$4,723	\$4,817	\$4,913	\$5,012	\$5,112
Cross Country Coach - Boys/Girls					
(1)	\$6,696	\$6,830	\$6,967	\$7,106	\$7,248
Assistant Cross Country Coach	\$4,154	\$4,238	\$4,322	\$4,409	\$4,497
Indoor Track Coach - Boys	\$7,316	\$7,463	\$7,612	\$7,764	\$7,920
Indoor Track Coach - Girls	\$7,316	\$7,463	\$7,612	\$7,764	\$7,920
Indoor Track Assistant	\$3,750	\$3,825	\$3,901	\$3,979	\$4,059
Tennis Coach - Boys	\$6,696	\$6,830	\$6,967	\$7,106	\$7,248
Tennis Coach - Girls	\$6,696	\$6,830	\$6,967	\$7,106	\$7,248
Asst Tennis - Boys	\$4,154	\$4,238	\$4,322	\$4,409	\$4,497
Asst Tennis - Girls	\$4,154	\$4,238	\$4,322	\$4,409	\$4,497
Golf Coach	\$5,213	\$5,317	\$5,424	\$5,532	\$5,643
Golf Assistant Coach	\$2,576	\$2,627	\$2,680	\$2,733	\$2,788
Bowling Coach - Boys	\$5,213	\$5,317	\$5,424	\$5,532	\$5,643
Bowling Coach - Girls	\$5,213	\$5,317	\$5,424	\$5,532	\$5,643
Weight Training Coach (Winter)	\$3,824	\$3,900	\$3,978	\$4,058	\$4,139
Weight Training Coach (Spring)	\$3,824	\$3,900	\$3,978	\$4,058	\$4,139
Asst Weight Training (Winter)	\$2,576	\$2,627	\$2,680	\$2,733	\$2,788
Asst Weight Training (Spring)	\$2,576	\$2,627	\$2,680	\$2,733	\$2,788
Weight Training Coach (Summer)	\$1,000	\$1,000	\$1,000	\$1,000	\$1,000
Weight Training Coach (Summer)	\$1,000	\$1,000	\$1,000	\$1,000	\$1,000
Head Swimming Coach	\$7,316	\$7,463	\$7,612	\$7,764	\$7,920
Asst Swimming Coach	\$4,486	\$4,576	\$4,667	\$4,761	\$4,856
Head Cheerleading - Fall	\$4,014	\$4,094	\$4,176	\$4,259	\$4,345
Head Cheerleading - Winter	\$3,284	\$3,350	\$3,417	\$3,485	\$3,555
Asst Cheerleading - Fall	\$2,356	\$2,403	\$2,451	\$2,500	\$2,550
Asst Cheerleading - Winter	\$2,017	\$2,057	\$2,098	\$2,140	\$2,183
Fall Sports Coordinator	\$2,653	\$2,706	\$2,760	\$2,815	\$2,872
Winter Sports Coordinator	\$3,714	\$3,788	\$3,864	\$3,941	\$4,020
Spring Sports Coordinator	\$2,653	\$2,706	\$2,760	\$2,815	\$2,872

EXHIBIT 2 - HIGH SCHOOL CO- CURRICULAR SALARIES

Position	<u>22-23</u>	23-24	24-25	<u>25-26</u>	<u> 26-27</u>
Senior Class Advisor	\$2,943	\$3,002	\$3,062	\$3,123	\$3,185
Senior Class Advisor	\$2,943	\$3,002	\$3,062	\$3,123	\$3,185
Junior Class Advisor	\$2,877	\$2,935	\$2,994	\$3,054	\$3,115
Junior Class Advisor	\$2,877	\$2,935	\$2,994	\$3,054	\$3,115
Sophomore Class Advisor	\$1,805	\$1,842	\$1,878	\$1,916	\$1,954
Sophomore Class Advisor	\$1,805	\$1,842	\$1,878	\$1,916	\$1,954
Freshman Class Advisor	\$1,780	\$1,815	\$1,852	\$1,889	\$1,927
Freshman Class Advisor	\$1,780	\$1,815	\$1,852	\$1,889	\$1,927
Musical Director	\$6,283	\$6,409	\$6,537	\$6,668	\$6,801
Musical Vocal Coach	\$4,577	\$4,668	\$4,762	\$4,857	\$4,954
Musical Drama Coach	\$4,577	\$4,668	\$4,762	\$4,857	\$4,954
Musical Set Designer	\$2,851	\$2,908	\$2,966	\$3,025	\$3,086
Musical Conductor	\$3,488	\$3,558	\$3,629	\$3,702	\$3,776
Musical Stage Manager	\$4,577	\$4,668	\$4,762	\$4,857	\$4,954
Musical Business Manager	\$2,114	\$2,157	\$2,200	\$2,244	\$2,289
Musical Choreographer	\$4,577	\$4,668	\$4,762	\$4,857	\$4,954
Musical Accompanist	\$4,577	\$4,668	\$4,762	\$4,857	\$4,954
Musical Costumer	\$3,084	\$3,146	\$3,209	\$3,273	\$3,339
Fall Play Director	\$2,727	\$2,782	\$2,838	\$2,894	\$2,952
Assistant Fall Play Director	\$1,973	\$2,012	\$2,052	\$2,093	\$2,135
Girls Athletic Association	\$1,626	\$1,658	\$1,692	\$1,725	\$1,760
Table Top Gaming Advisor	\$1,626	\$1,658	\$1,692	\$1,725	\$1,760
Art Club	\$1,626	\$1,658	\$1,692	\$1,725	\$1,760
Science Club	\$1,626	\$1,658	\$1,692	\$1,725	\$1,760
Honors Vocal Competitions	\$2,980	\$3,040	\$3,101	\$3,163	\$3,226
Honors Musical Competitions	\$2,980	\$3,040	\$3,101	\$3,163	\$3,226
Honors Musical Competitions	\$2,980	\$3,040	\$3,101	\$3,163	\$3,226
Student Council Advisor	\$4,201	\$4,285	\$4,371	\$4,459	\$4,548
Yearbook Advisor	\$5,588	\$5,699	\$5 <i>,</i> 813	\$5,930	\$6,048
Assistant Yearbook Advisor	\$2,938	\$2,996	\$3,056	\$3,117	\$3,180
Newspaper Advisor	\$4,107	\$4,189	\$4,272	\$4,358	\$4,445
Jazz Band Competitions	\$1,626	\$1,658	\$1,692	\$1,725	\$1,760
AV Advisor	\$3,101	\$3,163	\$3,226	\$3,291	\$3,356
Stage Crew Advisor	\$3,153	\$3,216	\$3,280	\$3,346	\$3,413
Culture Club	\$2,100	\$2,142	\$2,185	\$2,229	\$2,273
National Honor Society	\$1,920	\$1,958	\$1,997	\$2,037	\$2,078
National Art Honor Society	\$1,920	\$1,958	\$1,997	\$2,037	\$2,078

<u>Position</u>	22-23	<u>23-24</u>	<u>24-25</u>	<u>25-26</u>	<u> 26-27</u>
Robotics Club	\$1,626	\$1,658	\$1,692	\$1,725	\$1,760
Future Educators Association	\$1,626	\$1,658	\$1,692	\$1,725	\$1,760
Future Business Leaders	\$1,626	\$1,658	\$1,692	\$1,725	\$1,760
Marching Band Director	\$8,719	\$8,893	\$9,071	\$9,253	\$9,438
First Assistant Marching Band	\$4,936	\$5,034	\$5,135	\$5,238	\$5,343
Second Assistant Marching Band	\$4,459	\$4,549	\$4,640	\$4,732	\$4,827
Band Front/Color Guard Advisor	\$4,936	\$5,034	\$5,135	\$5,238	\$5,343
Mock Trial Program	\$1,626	\$1,658	\$1,692	\$1,725	\$1,760
SADD	\$1,626	\$1,658	\$1,692	\$1,725	\$1,760
Rotary/Interact	\$1,626	\$1,658	\$1,692	\$1,725	\$1,760
Medical Careers Club	\$1,626	\$1,658	\$1,692	\$1,725	\$1,760
Project Graduation Coordinator	\$1,626	\$1,658	\$1,692	\$1,725	\$1,760
School to Career Coordinator	\$3,183	\$3,247	\$3,312	\$3,378	\$3,446
Director of Student Activities	\$4,345	\$4,432	\$4,521	\$4,611	\$4,703
Renaissance Advisor	\$3,606	\$3,678	\$3,751	\$3,826	\$3,903

EXHIBIT 2 - MIDDLE SCHOOL CO-CURRICULAR SALARIES

<u>Position</u>	<u>22-23</u>	23-24	24-25	<u>25-26</u>	<u> 26-27</u>
Student Council Advisor	\$3,443	\$3,511	\$3,582	\$3,653	\$3,726
School Play Director	\$2,539	\$2,590	\$2,641	\$2,694	\$2,748
Assistant Play Director	\$1,388	\$1,416	\$1,444	\$1,473	\$1,503
Choir Director	\$3,220	\$3,285	\$3,350	\$3,417	\$3,486
Newspaper Advisor	\$2,546	\$2,597	\$2,649	\$2,702	\$2,756
Honors Instrumental					
Competition	\$2,981	\$3,041	\$3,102	\$3,164	\$3,227
Stage Band	\$3,363	\$3,430	\$3,499	\$3,569	\$3,640
Director of Student Activities	\$4,345	\$4,432	\$4,521	\$4,611	\$4,703
National Junior Honor Society	\$1,920	\$1,958	\$1,997	\$2,037	\$2,078
Yearbook Advisor	\$3,558	\$3,629	\$3,701	\$3,776	\$3,851
Renaissance Advisor	\$1,625	\$1,657	\$1,691	\$1,724	\$1,759
Art Club Advisor	\$1,625	\$1,657	\$1,691	\$1,724	\$1,759
Science Club Advisor	\$1,625	\$1,657	\$1,691	\$1,724	\$1,759
Computer Club Advisor	\$1,625	\$1,657	\$1,691	\$1,724	\$1,759

EXHIBIT 2 - MIDDLE SCHOOL ATHLETIC SALARIES

<u>Position</u>	<u>22-23</u>	<u>23-24</u>	<u>24-25</u>	<u>25-26</u>	<u> 26-27</u>
Sports Coordinator	\$5,306	\$5,412	\$5,520	\$5,631	\$5,743
Soccer Coach - Boys	\$3,708	\$3,782	\$3 <i>,</i> 857	\$3,935	\$4,013
Soccer Coach - Girls	\$3,708	\$3 <i>,</i> 782	\$3,857	\$3,935	\$4,013
Asst Soccer Coach - Boys	\$2,341	\$2,388	\$2,435	\$2,484	\$2,534
Asst Soccer Coach - Girls	\$2,341	\$2,388	\$2,435	\$2,484	\$2,534
Field Hockey Coach	\$3,708	\$3,782	\$3,857	\$3,935	\$4,013
Asst Field Hockey Coach	\$2,341	\$2,388	\$2,435	\$2,484	\$2,534
Basketball Coach - Boys	\$3,708	\$3,782	\$3,857	\$3 <i>,</i> 935	\$4,013
Basketball Coach - Girls	\$3,708	\$3,782	\$3,857	\$3,935	\$4,013
Asst Basketball Coach - Boys	\$2,341	\$2,388	\$2,435	\$2,484	\$2,534
Asst Basketball Coach - Girls	\$2,341	\$2,388	\$2,435	\$2,484	\$2,534
Wrestling Coach	\$3,708	\$3,782	\$3,857	\$3,935	\$4,013
Asst Wrestling Coach	\$2,341	\$2,388	\$2,435	\$2,484	\$2,534
Baseball Coach	\$3,708	\$3,782	\$3,857	\$3,935	\$4,013
Asst Baseball Coach	\$2,341	\$2,388	\$2,435	\$2,484	\$2,534
Softball Coach	\$3,708	\$3,782	\$3,857	\$3,935	\$4,013
Asst Softball Coach	\$2,341	\$2,388	\$2,435	\$2,484	\$2,534

Once duties of the stipend are fulfilled and approved by the athletic director, athletic stipends shall be paid according to the chart below:

Fall Sports: 2nd pay period in November

Winter Sports: 1st pay period in March
Spring Sports: 1st pay period in June

Summer Sports: 2nd pay period in August

EXHIBIT 3 - TEACHER HOURLY RATE

The hourly rate for extra work for teachers shall be \$30 per hour. This includes, but is not limited to, curriculum writing and preparation, professional development preparation, credit completion, homebound instruction, Twilight or any other alternative program, after school detention, and summer band.

This rate excludes Extended School Year (ESY), whose rates shall be as follows:

ESY Paraprofessionals \$20 / Hour ESY Nurse/Counselor/Teacher \$35 / Hour ESY Speech/OT \$45 / Hour

EXHIBIT 3 - SECRETARIAL SALARIES

The salary of each secretarial position will be increased:

by 3.4% in 2022-2023

by 3.5% in 2023-2024

by 3.5% in 2024-2025

by 3.6% in 2025-2026

by 3.5% in 2026-2027

The minimum salary for secretarial employees hired after July 1, 2022 shall be as follows:

10-month	12-month	
\$33,333	\$40,000	in 2022-2023
\$34,166	\$41,000	in 2023-2024
\$35,000	\$42,000	in 2024-2025
\$35,833	\$43,000	in 2025-2026
\$36,666	\$44,000	in 2026-2027

EXHIBIT 3 - PARAPROFESSIONAL SALARY RATE

Daily Rate

Employees hired before July 1, 2018:

\$198 / day	in 2022-2023
\$202 / day	in 2023-2024
\$206 / day	in 2024-2025
\$210 / day	in 2025-2026
\$214 / day	in 2026-2027

Employees hired after July 1, 2018 / before July 1, 2019:

\$136.25 / day	in 2022-2023
\$140.25 / day	in 2023-2024
\$144.25 / day	in 2024-2025
\$148.25 / day	in 2025-2026
\$152.25 / day	in 2026-2027

Employees hired between these dates shall receive raises according to the approved salary guides.

Employees hired after July 1, 2021:

\$134.50 / day	in 2022-2023
\$138.50 / day	in 2023-2024
\$142.50 / day	in 2024-2025
\$146.50 / day	in 2025-2026
\$150.50 / day	in 2026-2027

EXHIBIT 3 - SERVICE AIDES SALARY RATE

Hourly Rate

Employees hired before July 1, 2018:

2022-2023	2023-2024	<u>2024-2025</u>	2025-2026	2026-2027
\$25.90	\$26.81	\$27.75	\$28.75	\$29.75

Employees hired after July 1, 2018 / before July 1, 2019

2022-2023	2023-2024	2024-2025	<u>2025-2026</u>	<u>2026-2027</u>
\$15.86	\$16.42	\$16.99	\$17.60	\$18.22

Employees hired between these dates shall receive raises according to the approved salary guides.

Employees hired after July 1, 2021:

2022-2023	2023-2024	2024-2025	2025-2026	2026-2027
\$15.30	\$15.84	\$16.39	\$16.98	\$17.58

EXHIBIT 4 - BUS DRIVERS HOURLY RATE

Employees hired before July 1, 2018:

<u>Tier</u>

		2022-2023	2023-2024	2024-2025	2025-2026	<u>2026-2027</u>
I	(1-6 years)	\$26.93	\$27.79	\$28.42	\$29.44	\$30.47
II	(7-9 years)	\$27.92	\$28.82	\$29.47	\$30.53	\$31.60
III	(10 years & up)	\$31.07	\$32.07	\$32.80	\$33.98	\$35.17

Employees hired after July 1, 2018 / before July 1, 2019:

<u>2022-2023</u>	2023-2024	<u>2024-2025</u>	2025-2026	2026-2027
\$21.21	\$21.89	\$22.38	\$23.19	\$24.00

Employees hired between these dates shall receive raises according to the approved salary guides.

Employees hired after July 1, 2021:

<u>2022-2023</u>	<u>2023-2024</u>	2024-2025	2025-2026	<u>2026-2027</u>
\$20.68	\$21.35	\$21.83	\$22.61	\$23.41

Tier placement for Bus Drivers is determined by the number of years credited at the beginning of the contract year.

EXHIBIT 4 - BUS AIDES HOURLY RATE

Employees hired before July 1, 2018:

2022-2023	2023-2024	2024-2025	<u>2025-2026</u>	2026-2027
\$25.90	\$26.81	\$27.75	\$28.75	\$29.75

Employees hired after July 1, 2018 / before July 1, 2019:

2022-2023	<u>2023-2024</u>	2024-2025	2025-2026	2026-2027
\$15.86	\$16.42	\$16.99	\$17.60	\$18.22

Employees hired between these dates shall receive raises according to the approved salary guides.

Employees hired after July 1, 2021:

2022-2023	2023-2024	2024-2025	2025-2026	2026-2027
\$15.30	\$15.84	\$16.39	\$16.98	\$17.58

EXHIBIT 4 - SPECIAL EDUCATION RUNS SALARY RATES

2 Way \$300 1 Way \$200

EXHIBIT 5 - CUSTODIAL, MAINTENANCE, GROUNDS AND VEHICLE MECHANICS SALARY RATE

	22-23	23-24	24-25	25-26	26-27
Custodian 1	\$38,528	\$39,876	\$41,272	\$42,758	\$44,254
Custodian 2	\$51,333	\$53,130	\$54,989	\$56,969	\$58,963
Custodian 3	\$67,128	\$69,478	\$71,910	\$74,498	\$77,106
Painter	\$68,709	\$71,114	\$73,603	\$76,253	\$78,922
Grounds	\$69,353	\$71,781	\$74,293	\$76,968	\$79,662
Maintenance Mechanic	\$64,387	\$66,641	\$68,973	\$71,456	\$73,957
Electrician	\$71,799	\$74,312	\$76,913	\$79,682	\$82,470
HVAC	\$71,799	\$74,312	\$76,913	\$79,682	\$82,470
Maintenance	\$71,799	\$74,312	\$76,913	\$79,682	\$82,470
Vehicle Mechanic 2	\$73,718	\$76,298	\$78,969	\$81,811	\$84,675

Employees hired between July 1, 2019, and June 30, 2022, shall receive raises according to the approved salary guides.

Starting Salaries (effective July 1, 2022):

Custodian	\$37,000	\$38,000	\$39,000	\$40,000	\$41,000
Grounds	\$42,600	\$43,800	\$45,000	\$46,200	\$47,400
Maintenance	\$43,750	\$45,000	\$46,250	\$47,500	\$48,750
Vehicle Mechanic	\$52,500	\$54,000	\$55,500	\$57,000	\$58,500

EXHIBIT 5 - CAFETERIA WORKERS SALARY

Tier	22-23	23-24	24-25	25-26	26-27
II	\$21.77	\$22.53	\$23.32	\$24.16	\$25.00
II Cook	\$23.01	\$23.81	\$24.65	\$25.53	\$26.43